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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To The Board of Administrators of Tulane University:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements (the “financial
statements”) of Tulane University (the “University”), which comprise the consolidated statements
of financial position as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the related consolidated statements of
activities, cash flows, and functional expenses for the years then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
University’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Tulane University as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the changes in its

net assets, its cash flows, and functional expenses for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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TULANE UNIVERSITY

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS OF JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019
(In thousands)

2020 2019
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 142,883 $ 75,043
Deposits in trust 11,326 37,330
Accounts and other receivables—net 81,168 69,256
Contributions receivable—net 53,197 60,490
Loans receivable—net 28,772 33,616
Investments 1,490,798 1,461,769
Prepaid expenses and other assets 32,793 19,715
Property, plant, and equipment—net 998,388 973,442
TOTAL ASSETS $ 2,839,325 $2,730,661
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 114,457 $ 92,156
Deferred revenue and refundable deposits 84,471 84,953
Lines of credit 50,000 -
Notes payable 53,526 41,573
Bonds payable 710,282 729,221
Federal student loan funds 31,895 46,194
Total liabilities 1,044,631 994,097
NET ASSETS:
Without donor restrictions 154,485 140,122
Without donor restrictions, funds functioning as endowment 133,198 131,804
Total without donor restrictions 287,683 271,926
With donor restrictions 1,507,011 1,464,638
Total net assets 1,794,694 1,736,564
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 2,839,325 $2,730,661

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



TULANE UNIVERSITY

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
(In thousands)

REVENUES:
Tuition and fees
Less: Institutional scholarships and fellowships

Tuition and fees—net

Government grants and contracts
Private gifts and grants

Medical group practice, labs, and clinics
Affiliated hospital agreements/contracts
Endowment income

Investment income and gains—net
Recovery of indirect costs

Auxiliary enterprises

Other

Net assets released from restrictions

Total revenues

EXPENSES:
Instruction and academic support
Affiliated hospital agreements/contracts
Organized research
Public service
Libraries
Student services
Institutional support
Scholarships and fellowships
Auxiliary enterprises
Medical group practice
Other

Total expenses

Change in net assets from operating activities

OTHER CHANGES IN NET ASSETS:
Net realized and unrealized gains
Net unrealized losses on interest rate swaps
Accumulated gains used for spending
Transfers between net asset groups

Total other changes in net assets

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
BEGINNING NET ASSETS

ENDING NET ASSETS

Without Donor With Donor Total
Restrictions Restrictions 2020
$ 641,562 - $ 641,562
(202,284) - (202,284)
439,278 - 439,278
130,457 - 130,457
55,302 56,577 111,879
196,804 - 196,804
45,710 - 45,710
14,302 48,475 62,777
6,087 2,278 8,365
36,673 - 36,673
62,906 - 62,906
39,602 - 39,602
70,116 (70,116) -
1,097,237 37,214 1,134,451
376,575 - 376,575
37,585 - 37,585
167,547 - 167,547
35,235 - 35,235
26,444 - 26,444
87,611 - 87,611
114,436 - 114,436
18,265 - 18,265
68,604 - 68,604
125,457 - 125,457
12,537 4,638 17,175
1,070,296 4,638 1,074,934
26,941
7,039 67,642 74,681
(12,349) - (12,349)
(6,010) (57,709) (63,719)
136 (136) -
(11,184) 9,797 (1,387)
15,757 42,373 58,130
271,926 1,464,638 1,736,564
$ 287,683 $1,507,011 $1,794,694

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



TULANE UNIVERSITY

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
(In thousands)

REVENUES:
Tuition and fees
Less: Institutional scholarships and fellowships

Tuition and fees—net

Government grants and contracts
Private gifts and grants

Medical group practice, labs, and clinics
Affiliated hospital agreements/contracts
Endowment income

Investment income and gains—net
Recovery of indirect costs

Auxiliary enterprises

Other

Net assets released from restrictions

Total revenues

EXPENSES:
Instruction and academic support
Affiliated hospital agreements/contracts
Organized research
Public service
Libraries
Student services
Institutional support
Scholarships and fellowships
Auxiliary enterprises
Medical group practice
Other

Total expenses

Change in net assets from operating activities

OTHER CHANGES IN NET ASSETS:
Net realized and unrealized gains
Net unrealized losses on interest rate swaps
Accumulated gains used for spending
Transfers between net asset groups

Total other changes in net assets

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
BEGINNING NET ASSETS

ENDING NET ASSETS

Without Donor With Donor Total
Restrictions Restrictions 2019
$ 603,072 $ - $ 603,072
(195,938) - (195,938)
407,134 - 407,134
120,149 - 120,149
57,333 41,063 98,396
171,164 - 171,164
45,146 - 45,146
13,165 45,380 58,545
9,826 4,101 13,927
35,752 - 35,752
74,388 - 74,388
39,162 - 39,162
72,966 (72,966) -
1,046,185 17,578 1,063,763
350,182 - 350,182
35,374 - 35,374
158,366 - 158,366
30,451 - 30,451
26,377 - 26,377
89,739 - 89,739
109,601 - 109,601
18,628 - 18,628
72,439 - 72,439
121,362 - 121,362
9,082 1,637 10,719
1,021,601 1,637 1,023,238
24,584
9,294 60,001 69,295
(8,759) - (8,759)
(7,502) (53,522) (61,024)
(3,173) 3,173 -
(10,140) 9,652 (488)
14,444 25,593 40,037
257,482 1,439,045 1,696,527
$ 271,926 $1,464,638 $1,736,564

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



TULANE UNIVERSITY

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019
(In thousands)

2020 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Changes in net assets $ 58,130 $ 40,037
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net
cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 51,918 52,584
Asset retirements 581 694
Net realized and unrealized investment gains (74,681) (69,295)
Net decrease in fair value of interest rate swap agreements 12,349 8,759
Contributions restricted for permanent investment (24,332) (25,644)
Contributions of property (219) (276)
Grant receipts used for capital purposes - (489)
Donations received for capital purposes (15,228) (15,139)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts and other receivables (11,912) 4,164
Decrease in contributions receivable 3,480 4,733
(Increase) in prepaid expenses and other assets (13,078) (8,030)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 17,976 (2,412)
(Decrease) increase in deferred revenue and refundable deposits (482) 15,394
Net cash provided by operating activities 4,502 5,080
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investments (255,941) (327,186)
Proceeds from the sale of investments 301,593 366,210
Purchase of property, plant, and equipment (84,962) (83,627)
Decrease in deposits in trust 26,004 33,757
Student loans issued (2,075) (245)
Proceeds from collections of student loans 6,919 6,764
Grant receipts used for capital purposes - 489
Donations received for capital purposes 15,228 15,139
Net cash provided by investing activities 6,766 11,301
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Contributions restricted for permanent investment 28,145 29,937
Repayment of bonded debt (18,220) (19,950)
Repayment of notes payable (555) (28,888)
Proceeds from notes payable 12,500 40,843
Proceeds from lines of credit 50,000 -
(Decrease) increase in federal student loan funds (14,299) 969
Annuities paid (999) (1,071)
Net cash provided by financing activities 56,572 21,840
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 67,840 38,221
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—Beginning of year 75,043 36,822
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—End of year $ 142,883 $ 75,043
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES—Interest paid $ 29,913 $ 30,358

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



TULANE UNIVERSITY

STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

(In thousands)

Instruction and Academic Support
Affiliated Hospital Agreements/Contracts
Organized Research

Public Service

Libraries

Student Services

Institutional Support

Scholarships and Fellowships
Auxiliary Enterprises

Medical Group Practice

Other

Total

Instruction and Academic Support
Affiliated Hospital Agreements/Contracts
Organized Research

Public Service

Libraries

Student Services

Institutional Support

Scholarships and Fellowships
Auxiliary Enterprises

Medical Group Practice

Other

Total

2020
Fringe Supplies and
Salaries Benefits Services Depreciation Interest Other Total
$197,733 $43,740 $ 93,024 $14,808 $ 7,938 $ 19,332 $ 376,575
33,550 14 3,993 - - 28 37,585
60,467 11,732 31,965 6,744 2,009 54,630 167,547
6,737 1,460 3,870 628 - 22,540 35,235
7,708 1,606 4,606 11,757 243 524 26,444
30,035 6,994 45,976 2,766 - 1,840 87,611
61,106 13,631 28,406 1,876 5,922 3,495 114,436
1,107 157 719 - - 16,282 18,265
14,246 2,426 13,156 14,631 12,705 11,440 68,604
104,548 10,061 8,286 - - 2,562 125,457
2,169 409 2,083 - - 12,514 17,175
$519,406 $92,230 $236,084 $53,210 $28,817 $145,187 $1,074,934
2019
Fringe Supplies and
Salaries Benefits Services Depreciation Interest Other Total
$179,435 $41,631 $ 87,443 $15,154 $ 7,608 $ 18,911 $ 350,182
31,619 4 3,701 - - 50 35,374
54,512 10,110 34,806 6,901 1,865 50,172 158,366
6,329 1,476 3,884 643 - 18,119 30,451
7,273 1,700 5,522 11,517 245 120 26,377
30,263 7,323 45,508 2,831 - 3,814 89,739
54,056 12,469 32,415 1,921 5,924 2,816 109,601
1,115 135 - - - 17,378 18,628
12,959 3,261 21,109 14,973 14,085 6,052 72,439
98,328 10,150 8,778 - - 4,106 121,362
2,403 440 7,717 - - 159 10,719
$478,292 $88,699 $250,883 $53,940 $29,727 $121,697 $1,023,238

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



TULANE UNIVERSITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The summary of significant accounting policies followed by Tulane University (the
“University”) is presented below and in other sections of these notes. The University is a
private research university founded in 1834.

Basis of Presentation—The accompanying consolidated financial statements (the
“financial statements”) have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. The
financial statements have been consolidated to include the accounts of the University,
Tulane Murphy Foundation, Inc. (the “Foundation”), Tulane International, LLC, Howard
Memorial Association, Riversphere One, Riversphere Two, Wick Cary, LLC’s, Samuel Z.
Stone CIPR Trust, Tulane Pharmacy, LLC, Tulane Living Well, LLC, Warwick Apartments,
Inc., and all auxiliary activities.

As prescribed by Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-14, Presentation of Financial
Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958), the University classifies it net assets into
two categories: net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor
restrictions.

The University’s two net asset categories are described below.
Net assets without donor restrictions include the following:

o Net assets without donor restrictions include funds not subject to donor-imposed
stipulations. The revenues received and expenses incurred in conducting the
educational, research, and service missions of the University are included in this
category. Additionally, this category includes the health care services associated with
the School of Medicine Medical Group Practice and the professional services provided
under affiliated hospital agreements.

o Net assets without donor restrictions, funds functioning as endowment include funds
designated by the board of administrators for investment purposes. The earnings on
such funds are distributed to support the University operations.

Net assets with donor restrictions include the following:

o Gifts for which donor-imposed restrictions have not been met, annuity and life income
funds, contributions receivable (where the ultimate purpose of the proceeds is not
permanently restricted), accumulated but undistributed gains and losses on donor-
restricted endowment funds, and distributed but unspent earnings on donor-restricted
endowment funds.

o Gifts, trusts and contributions receivable, which are required by donor-imposed
restriction to be invested in perpetuity. Only the income from such investments is
available for program operations in accordance with donor restrictions.



Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions Operating Results—Net assets without donor
restrictions operating results include all transactions that change net assets without donor
restrictions, except for endowment related investment transactions for net realized and
unrealized gains, net unrealized gains associated with interest rate swaps, losses on early
extinguishment of debt, accumulated gains used for spending, and transfer between net
asset groups. Donor transactions for expendable gifts that are released from restrictions
are included with net assets without donor restrictions operating results. Net assets
without donor restrictions operating results exclude gifts for permanent investment and
gifts received where the donor restrictions have not been met.

Endowment distributions reported as operating income consist of endowment return
distributed to support current operating needs. Endowment distributions initially reported
as net assets with donor restrictions are transferred to net assets without donor restriction
status via the line entitled “"Net Assets Released from Restrictions” on the basis of fulfilling
the donors’ restrictions through qualified expenditures.

Investment income and gains includes income from trusts that is immediately available to
fund operations.

Deferred Revenue—Advance payments are recorded as deferred revenue within the
category “Deferred Revenue and Refundable Deposits”, which consists of the following
amounts (in thousands):

2020 2019
Grants and contracts—FEMA $ 3,258 $ 6,258
Grants and contracts—other 38,823 38,334
Tuition and fees—net 19,643 14,906
Other 22,747 25,455
Total $84,471 $84,953

Use of Estimates—The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Allocation of Certain Expenses—The financial statements present expenses by
functional classification in accordance with the overall mission of the University.

Certain natural expenses are allocated to the respective functional classifications based on
certain criteria. Depreciation and retirement of assets as presented in the Statement of
Functional Expenses, as well as plant operations and maintenance expense of $59,085 and
$59,837 for 2020 and 2019, respectively, are allocated based on square footage
occupancy. Interest expense is allocated to the functional categories that have benefited
from the proceeds of the debt.

Cash Equivalents—Cash equivalents include short-term, highly liquid investments with a
maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase. Cash equivalents representing
assets of endowment and similar funds and annuity and life income funds are included in
the caption Investments.



Investments—Equity securities with readily determinable values, and most debt
securities, are valued based on market quotations. Certain fixed-income securities are
valued based on dealer supplied valuations. Where fair values are not determinable
through market quotations estimates are supplied by external investment managers and a
valuation review is conducted by management. Such review includes obtaining and
reviewing audited and unaudited financial information from investment managers, holding
discussions with external managers and general partners, and evaluating investment
returns in light of current conditions. University held real estate, mortgages and royalty
interests are valued at cost or original appraised value. The University’s investment in
University Healthcare System, L.L.C. (UHS) is accounted for using the equity method (see
Note 18), but not below zero.

Depreciation is not recorded for endowment fund real estate investments. In the opinion of
the University’s management, the excess of realizable market value over the book value of
such property would be sufficient to preclude the impairment of endowment net assets
even if depreciation provisions were made. This excess is considered sufficient to permit
the distribution of a portion of the rentals and royalties derived from these properties to
current operations.

Endowment Spending Policy—The pooled endowment spending policy is based upon the
average market value of the previous 12 quarters multiplied by a specified percentage. The
percentage for the pooled endowment for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
was 5%. Accumulated investment gains are used to fund the difference between payout
and current earnings.

Annuity and Life Income Agreements—The University has agreements with donors that
include irrevocable charitable remainder trusts, charitable gift annuities, and life income
funds where the University serves as trustee. Assets held in trust are generally comprised
of investments. Such values are reported as assets with donor restrictions net of the
estimated future payments to be made to donors or other beneficiaries.

Other Financial Instruments—The University occasionally uses derivatives to manage
the market risk associated with outstanding variable rate debt. Derivative financial
instruments are reported at fair value with any resulting gain or loss reported in the other
changes in net assets section of the statement of activities.

Property, Plant, and Equipment—Property, plant, and equipment are recorded at cost,
or if donated, at fair market value at the date of donation. Depreciation is computed on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the related assets. The estimated
useful lives are as follows: buildings, 20 to 60 years; improvements, 10 to 20 years; and
equipment and library books, 4 to 20 years.

Certain works of art and historical treasures have been recognized at their estimated fair
value based upon appraisals or similar valuations at the time of acquisition. Works of art
and historical treasures are not depreciated.

Conditional asset retirement obligations related to legal requirements to perform certain
future activities related to the retirement, disposal, or abandonment of assets are accrued
utilizing physical site surveys to estimate the net present value of applicable future costs,
such as asbestos abatement or removal.

The University reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset might not be recoverable



through future utilization. An impairment charge is recognized when the fair value of an
asset is less than its carrying value. No impairment charges were recorded for the years
ended June 30, 2020 and 20109.

Deferred Financing Costs—The University incurred financing costs in connection with the
issuance of various bonds payable (see Note 12). Deferred financing costs as of June 30,
2020 and 2019 are as follows (in thousands):

2020 2019
Total deferred financing costs $12,309 $12,309
Less accumulated amortization (4,982) (4,639)
Deferred financing costs—net $ 7,327 $ 7,670

Income Taxes—Tulane is a tax-exempt organization as described in Section 501(c)(3) of
the Internal Revenue Code (IRC) and generally is exempt from federal and state income
taxes on activities considered to be inside its overall tax-exempt mission. Where Tulane
activities vary beyond the tax-exempt missions, then Tulane pays income taxes on
unrelated business income. Such taxes are included in the accompanying financial
statements.

New Accounting Pronouncements—In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-
02, Leases (Topic 842), that requires, among other things, a lessee to recognize a right-of-
use asset representing an entity’s right to use the underlying asset for the lease term and
a liability for lease payments on the statement of financial position, regardless of
classification of a lease as an operating or finance lease. On June 3, 2020, the FASB issued
ASU 2020-05, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) and Leases (Topic 842)
Effective Dates for Certain Entities, which amends the effective dates of Topic 606 and
Topic 842. As a result, Topic 842 is effective for the University for the year beginning July
1, 2020. Management has not yet determined the impact, if any, that implementation of
Topic 842 will have on the University’s financial statements.

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-13, Disclosure Framework-Changes to the
Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurement, which modifies the disclosure
requirements on fair value measurements in Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement, to
improve the effectiveness of the footnote disclosures. ASU No. 2018-13 is effective for the
University for the year beginning July 1, 2020. The University does not believe the
implementation of ASU No. 2018-13 will have a material impact on the University’s
financial statements and footnote disclosures thereto.

In September 2020, the FASB issued ASU No. 2020-07 Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958)

- Presentation and Disclosures by Not-for-Profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial
Assets, which requires not-for-profit entities to present contributed nonfinancial assets as a
separate line item in the statement of activities, apart from contributions of cash and other
financial assets. ASU No. 2020-07 is effective for the University beginning July 1, 2021,
with early adoption permitted. Management has not yet determined the impact, if any, that
implementation of ASU No. 2020-07 will have on the University’s financial statements.

In March 2020, the FASB issued ASU No. 2020-04, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848) -

Facilitation of the Effects of Reference Rate Reform on Financial Reporting, which provides
optional expedients and exceptions for applying GAAP to contracts, hedging relationships,
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and other transactions affected by reference rate reform, such as those that reference
LIBOR or another reference rate expected to be discontinued. Modifications of contracts
related to Topic 310, Receivables, and Topic 470, Debt, should be accounted for by
prospectively adjusting the effective interest rate. Modifications of contracts related to
Topic 840, Leases, and Topic 842, Leases, should be accounted for with no reassessment
of the lease classification and the discount rate or remeasurement of lease payment. If
elected to adopt, the optional expedients for contract modifications must be applied
consistently for all eligible contracts or eligible transactions within the relevant Topic. The
University has the option of adopting this update beginning January 1, 2020 through
December 31, 2022. The University has not yet determined the effect, if any, that the
implementation of ASU No. 2020-04 will have on the University’s financial statements and
footnote disclosures.

A variety of proposed or otherwise potential accounting standards are currently under
study by standard-setting organizations. Because of the tentative and preliminary nature
of such proposed standards, the University has not yet determined the effect, if any, that
the implementation of such proposed standards would have on its financial statements.

DEPOSITS IN TRUST

Deposits in trust at June 30, 2020 and 2019 consist of investments at fair value of $11,326
and $37,330 (in thousands), respectively, set aside primarily for bond-funded construction
costs and medical malpractice self-insurance.

ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Accounts receivable consist of the following at June 30, 2020 and 2019 (in thousands):

2020 2019

Student receivables, net of allowance for doubtful

accounts of $3,000 and $3,500 for 2020 and 2019, respectively. $ 8,819 $ 4,724
US Government, state and other contract receivables,

net of allowances for doubtful accounts of $244 and $719 for

2020 and 2019, respectively. 47,224 39,937
Patient and related receivables, net of allowances for

discounts and doubtful accounts of $10,654

and $12,803, respectively. 15,310 14,839
Other receivables 9,815 9,756
Total $81,168 $69,256

Management regularly assesses the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts by
performing ongoing evaluations of the various components of the accounts receivable
portfolio, including such factors as the differing economic risks associated with each
category, the financial condition of specific borrowers, the economic environment in which
the borrowers operate, the level of delinquent accounts, and the past history of the various
borrowers and the University. Factors also considered by management when performing its
assessment, in addition to general economic conditions and the other factors described
above, included, but were not limited to, a detailed review of the aging of the various
receivables and a review of the default rate by receivables category in comparison to prior
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years. The level of the allowance is adjusted based on the results of management’s
analysis.

Considering the other factors already discussed herein, management considers the
allowance for doubtful accounts losses to be prudent and reasonable. Furthermore, the
University’s allowance is general in nature and is available to absorb losses from any
receivables category. Management believes that the allowances for doubtful accounts at
June 30, 2020 and 2019 are adequate to absorb credit losses inherent in the portfolio as of
those dates.

CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE

Unconditional promises are included in the financial statements as contributions receivable
and revenue of the appropriate net asset category. Contributions are recorded after
discounting at 3.5% and 3.9% to the present value of the future cash flows for the years
ending June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Management expects unconditional promises to be realized in the following periods (in
thousands) at June 30, 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019
In one year or less $30,030 $ 29,702
Between one year and five years 27,115 34,923
More than five years 3,656 4,978
Contributions receivable prior to discounts
and allowances 60,801 69,603

Less: discounts of $2,252 and $3,262 at June 30, 2020

and 2019, respectively, and allowances for uncollectible

pledges of $5,352 and $5,851, at June 30, 2020 and

2019, respectively (7,604) (9,113)
Total $53,197 $ 60,490

Management follows a similar approach as described in Note 3 for accounts receivable in
evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for contributions receivable. Management
considers the allowance for uncollectible pledges to be prudent and reasonable.
Furthermore, the University’s allowance is general in nature and is available to absorb
losses from any contributions receivable category. Management believes that the
allowances for uncollectible pledges at June 30, 2020 and 2019 are adequate to absorb
any uncollectible pledges as of those dates.
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Contributions receivable at June 30, 2020 and 2019 have restrictions applicable to the
following (in thousands):

2020 2019
Endowments for departmental programs and activities $18,802 $22,615
Departmental programs and activities 16,515 14,445
Capital purposes 17,880 23,430
Total $53,197 $60,490

Conditional promises to give, bequests, and intentions to give that are not recorded in the
financial statements are $218,683 and $192,413 (in thousands) at June 30, 2020 and
2019, respectively.

LOANS RECEIVABLE

Loans receivable consist of the following at June 30, 2020 and 2019 (in thousands):

2020 2019

Perkins student loan program $27,457 $ 34,248
Primary care loan program 1,516 1,196
Other loan programs 799 647
Loans receivable prior to allowances 29,772 36,091
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (1,000) (2,475)
Total $28,772 $33,616

The University makes uncollateralized loans to students based on financial need. Student
loans are funded through federal government loan programs or institutional resources. At
June 30, 2020 and 2019, student loans represented 1.0% and 1.2%, respectively, of total
assets.

The University participates in the Perkins federal loan program. New loans under the
program were discontinued in October of 2017. Funds advanced by the federal government
of $31,895 and $46,194 at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, are ultimately
refundable to the government and are classified as liabilities in the statements of financial
position. Outstanding loans cancelled under the program result in a reduction of funds
available for lending and decrease the liability to the government.

Management follows a similar approach as described in Note 3 for accounts receivable in
evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for loans receivable. Allowances for doubtful loan
accounts are established based on management’s best estimate of the collectability of the
receivables and current economic factors which, in management’s judgment, could
influence the ability of loan recipients to repay the amounts per loan terms. Amounts due
under the Perkins loan program related to the government funded portion are guaranteed
by the government and, therefore, no reserves are placed on any balances past due under
that program.
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Management considers the allowance for doubtful accounts to be prudent and reasonable.
Furthermore, the University’s allowance is general in nature and is available to absorb
losses from any loans receivable category. Management believes that the allowances for
doubtful accounts at June 30, 2020 and 2019 are adequate to absorb any uncollectible
loans as of those dates.

INVESTMENTS AND ACCOUNTING STANDARDS CODIFICATION (ASC) 820-10,
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AND DISCLOSURES

ASC 820-10 adopts a hierarchy approach for ranking the quality and reliability of the
information used to determine fair values in one of three categories to increase consistency
and comparability in fair value measurements and disclosures. ASC 820 exempts assets
measured using the Net Asset Value (NAV) expedient from this hierarchy. For all other
assets measured at fair value, the highest priority (Tier 1) is given to quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets. Tier 2 assets are valued based on inputs other than
quoted prices that are “observable.” For example, quoted prices for similar securities or
quoted prices in inactive markets would both be observable. In Tier 3, the inputs used for
valuation are not observable or transparent and assumptions have to be made about how
market participants would price the underlying assets. The University does not have any
Tier 3 assets. Investments are classified based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement.
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Investments consisted of the following at June 30, 2020 (in thousands):

Tier 1
(Quoted Tier 2 Total
Prices in (Significant Investments Investments
Active Observable at Measured Measured

Investments Markets) Inputs) Fair Value at NAV Total
Short term money funds and cash © $ 19,012 $ 1,308 $ 20,320 % - $ 20,320
Domestic equity ® 126,830 - 126,830 161,246 288,076
International equity ® 23,610 - 23,610 183,734 207,344
Hedge funds:

Long/Short equity - - - 132,495 132,495

Absolute return - - - 76,926 76,926

Enhanced fixed income - - - 99,862 99,862
Fixed income © 128,692 15,273 143,965 - 143,965
Partnerships:

Private equity ‘¥ - - - 386,125 386,125

Private and public real assets "’ - - - 98,813 98,813

Total investments at
fair value by tier $298,144 $16,581 $314,725 $1,139,201 1,453,926

Real estate and royalty interests

at original cost or appraised value 19,748
Investment receivables

and other at cost or appraised value 17,124

Total investments
valued at other than fair value 36,872

Total investments $1,490,798
Deposits in trust:

Short term money funds and cash @ $ - $ 2,246 $ 2,246 $ - $ 2,246

Domestic equities ®) 509 509 - 509

Fixed income - 8,571 8,571 - 8,571
Total deposits in trust

at fair value by tier $ 509 $10,817 $ 11,326 $ - $ 11,326

See annotations on page 17 and 18.
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Investments consisted of the following at June 30, 2019 (in thousands):

Tier 1
(Quoted Tier 2 Total
Prices in (Significant Investments Investments
Active Observable at Measured Measured

Investments Markets) Inputs) Fair Value at NAV Total
Short term money funds and cash @ $ 64,692 $ 2,122 $ 66,814 $ - $ 66,814
Domestic equity ® 128,395 - 128,395 151,619 280,014
International equity ® 21,454 - 21,454 206,679 228,133
Hedge funds:

Long/Short equity © - - - 101,634 101,634

Absolute return - - - 113,698 113,698

Enhanced fixed income ) - - - 88,661 88,661
Fixed income 103,568 22,281 125,849 10,124 135,973
Partnerships:

Private equity @ - - - 276,566 276,566

Private and public real assets " - - - 130,700 130,700

Total investments at
fair value by tier $318,109 $24,403 $342,512 $1,079,681 $1,422,193

Real estate and royalty interests

at original cost or appraised value 19,827
Investment receivables

and other at cost or appraised value 19,749

Total investments
valued at other than fair value 39,576

Total investments $1,461,769
Deposits in trust:

Short term money funds and cash @ $ - $18,865 $ 18,865 $ - $ 18,865

Domestic equities ® 504 - 504 - 504

Fixed income © - 17,961 17,961 - 17,961
Total deposits in trust

at fair value by tier $ 504 $36,826 $ 37,330 $ N $ 37,330

See annotations on page 18 and 19.
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In accordance with ASC 820, fair values are determined by the use of calculated net asset
value per ownership share. As of June 30, 2020, the University investments that feature
net asset value per share are as follows:

Redemption

Frequency if Redemption

Fair Value Unfunded Currently Notice
(in Thousands) Commitments Eligible Period
Domestic and Daily, Monthly,
international equities ®) $ 344,980 - Quarterly, Yearly 1-120 days
Equity long/short hedge funds 132,495 - Quarterly 30-90 days
Absolute return hedge funds @ 76,926 - Monthly,
Quarterly, Semi-annual 15-90 days
Enhanced fixed income hedge
funds (¢ 99,862 48,974 Quarterly 180 days
Fixed income - - N/A N/A
Private equity @ 386,125 293,371 N/A N/A
Private and public real assets ™ 98,813 __ 52,537 N/A N/A
Total $1,139,201 $394,882

Annotations are applicable to page 15 in addition to above table.

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

This category includes investments in money market accounts as well as cash and cash equivalents.

This category includes direct ownership of equities, mutual funds, and investments in partnerships (valued at
NAV) that invest primarily in common stocks across various sectors and market caps and across different
geographic regions. 100% of these investments were valued using NAV. Of the NAV investments
approximately 57% of the value of this category were liquid as of June 30, 2020. Most of these funds do not
normally short or employ leverage.

This category includes investments in hedge funds that invest primarily in equities, both long and short.
Managers of these funds have the ability to shift investments by geography, sector, and exposure, both on a
net and gross basis. Investments representing approximately 75% of the value of this category were liquid as
of June 30, 2020. Generally, restriction periods range from three to twelve months as of June 30, 2020.

This category includes investments in hedge funds that invest in event-related equity and credit, arbitrage,
fixed income relative value, quantitative strategies, and other marketable assets and strategies. The category
is comprised of approximately 40% equity and the remainder in debt and other investments, and provides a
consistent return, with low volatility and limited correlation to equity and fixed-income markets. Investments
representing approximately 72% of the value of this category were liquid as of June 30, 2020. Generally,
restriction periods range from one to thirty months as of June 30, 2020.

This category includes investments in hedge funds and private capital funds where managers pursue
opportunistic exposure to distressed, high-yield debt, and private and opportunistic credit. The managers may
also hold positions in post-bankruptcy reorg equity and other derivative instruments. The goal is to provide an
attractive risk-adjusted return while targeting outperformance over the broader high-yield markets.
Investments representing approximately 11% of the value of this category were liquid as of June 30,

2020. The restriction period on the liquid investment within this category is three months as of June 30,
2020.
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(f)

(9)

(h)

This category includes direct ownership of domestic and international corporate and governmental bonds and
notes, as well as mutual funds owning such investments. There were no investments within this category as
of June 30, 2020.

This category includes private equity partnerships, including buyout, growth, venture capital, and distressed
investment firms. These investments cannot be redeemed but do receive distributions as the underlying
investments are liquidated. Most funds have a primary term of ten years. Approximately 30% of private
equity is in buyout strategies, 54% in growth strategies, 13% in venture capital, and 3% in distressed.

This category includes several partnerships in natural resources and US real estate funds. These investments
cannot be redeemed but do receive distributions as the underlying investments are liquidated. Most funds
have a primary term of ten years. Approximately 62% of this category is in oil and gas and natural resources
partnerships. The remaining 38% is in real estate funds.

In accordance with ASC 820, fair values are determined by the use of calculated net asset
value per ownership share. As of June 30, 2019, the University investments that feature
net asset value per share are as follows:

Redemption

Frequency if Redemption
Fair Value Unfunded Currently Notice
(in Thousands) Commitments Eligible Period
Domestic and Daily, Monthly,
international equities ®) $ 358,298 $ - Quarterly, Yearly 1-180 days
Equity long/short hedge funds 101,634 - Quarterly 30-60 days
Absolute return hedge funds @ 113,698 - Monthly,

Quarterly, Semi-annual 15-90 days

Enhanced fixed income hedge

funds 88,661 61,158 Quarterly 90 days
Fixed income 10,124 - Daily, Quarterly 1-60 days
Private equity 276,566 233,889 N/A N/A
Private and public real assets ™ 130,700 53,319 N/A N/A
Total $1,079,681 $348,366

Annotations are applicable to page 16 in addition to above table.

@ This category includes investments in money market accounts as well as cash and cash equivalents.

() This category includes direct ownership of equities, mutual funds, and investments in partnerships (valued at

(c)

NAV) that invest primarily in common stocks across various sectors and market caps and across different
geographic regions. 100% of these investments were valued using NAV. Of the NAV investments
approximately 70% of the value of this category were liquid as of June 30, 2019. Most of these funds do not
normally short or employ leverage.

This category includes investments in hedge funds that invest primarily in equities, both long and short.
Managers of these funds have the ability to shift investments by geography, sector, and exposure, both on a
net and gross basis. Investments representing approximately 57% of the value of this category were liquid as
of June 30, 2019. Generally, restriction periods range from three to twelve months as of June 30, 2019.
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@ This category includes investments in hedge funds that invest in event-related equity and credit, arbitrage,
fixed income relative value, quantitative strategies, and other marketable assets and strategies. The category
is comprised of approximately 40% equity and the remainder in debt and other investments, and provides a
consistent return, with low volatility and limited correlation to equity and fixed-income markets. Investments
representing approximately 71% of the value of this category were liquid as of June 30, 2019. Generally,
restriction periods range from one to eighteen months as of June 30, 2019.

(® This category includes investments in hedge funds and private capital funds where managers pursue
opportunistic exposure to distressed, high-yield debt, and private and opportunistic credit. The managers may
also hold positions in post-bankruptcy reorg equity and other derivative instruments. The goal is to provide an
attractive risk-adjusted return while targeting outperformance over the broader high-yield markets.
Investments representing approximately 7% of the value of this category were liquid as of June 30,

2019. The restriction period on the liquid investment within this category is three months as of June 30,
2019.

®  This category includes direct ownership of domestic and international corporate and governmental bonds and
notes, as well as mutual funds owning such investments. Investments representing approximately 96% of the
value of this category were liquid as of June 30, 2019.

(@ This category includes private equity partnerships, including buyout, growth, venture capital, and distressed
investment firms. These investments cannot be redeemed but are subject to liquidation distributions as the
underlying investments are liquidated. Most funds have a primary term of ten years. Approximately 33% of
private equity is in buyout strategies, 53% in growth strategies, 11% in venture capital, and 3% in
distressed.

(M This category includes several partnerships in oil and gas and US real estate funds. These investments cannot
be redeemed but are subject to liquidation distributions as the underlying investments are liquidated. Most
funds have a primary term of ten years. Approximately 62% of this category is in oil and gas and natural
resources partnerships. The remaining 38% is in real estate funds.

Endowment dividend and interest income (loss), net of expenses, amounted to
approximately $(3.3) and $(5.7) million, respectively, for the years ended June 30, 2020
and 2019. In accordance with the University’s endowment spending policy, $63.7 and
$61.0 million of accumulated gains were used to fund current operations for the years
ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Unrestricted investment income and gains
consist primarily of earnings on unspent bond proceeds and other amounts.

Net assets with restrictions at June 30, 2020 and 2019 include annuity, life income, and
other investments at market value of approximately $35.2 and $36.3 million, respectively.

Net assets with restrictions at June 30, 2020 and 2019 include the investment assets at
fair value of the Foundation that amounted to $80.3 and $85.0 million, respectively. The
University is the sole beneficiary of the Foundation, and a majority of the Foundation’s
directors are members of the University’s board of administrators. For the years ended
June 30, 2020 and 2019, income from the Foundation, which is restricted to specific
purposes, amounted to approximately $3.1 and $2.7 million, respectively.
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Investment return, net of investment management fees of $21.3 and $19.3 million for
2020 and 2019, respectively, is composed of the following for the years ended June 30,
2020 and 2019 (in thousands):

2020 2019
Operating:
Endowment income $ 62,777 $ 58,545
Investment income and gains—net 8,365 13,927
Total operating return 71,142 72,472
Non-operating:
Net realized and unrealized gains 74,681 69,295
Accumulated gains used for spending (63,719) (61,024)
Total non-operating return 10,962 8,271
Total investment return $ 82,104 $ 80,743

LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The University’s financial assets available within one year of the balance sheet date for
general expenditure as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 (in thousands):

2020 2019

Total assets, at year end $ 2,839,325 $ 2,730,661
Less nonfinancial assets:

Property, plant and equipment—net (998,388) (973,442)

Prepaid expenses and other assets (32,793) (19,715)

Financial assets, at year end 1,808,144 1,737,504

Less those unavailable for general expenditure within one year due to:

Contractual or donor-imposed restrictions:

Donor restrictions for specific purposes (1,507,011) (1,464,638)

Deposits in trust restricted for specific purposes (11,326) (37,330)

Federal student loan funds contractually repayable (31,895) (46,194)
Financial assets available to meet cash needs for

general expenditures within one year $ 257,912 $ 189,342

In addition to these available financial assets, a significant portion of the University's
annual expenditures are funded by current year operating revenues. The University has
also adopted a Cash Management Investment Policy which outlines liquidity objectives
surrounding the investment of excess cash until needed to meet cash flow requirements.
As indicated in Note 11, the University maintains $200 million in lines of credit if needed
for short term seasonal fluctuations.
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8. NET ASSETS

Net assets with restrictions at June 30, 2020 and 2019 (in thousands) were as follows:

2020 2019
Assets required to be held in perpetuity $ 701,799 $ 678,415
Assets required to be held for a specific purpose 770,817 748,348
Assets subject to passage of time (contributions receivable) 34,395 37,875
Total $1,507,011 $ 1,464,638

Net assets without restrictions at June 30, 2020 and 2019 (in thousands) were as follows:

2020 2019
Undesignated $ 154,485 $ 140,122
Funds functioning as endowment 133,198 131,804
Total $ 287,683 $ 271,926

Net assets released from net assets with donor restrictions at June 30, 2020 and 2019 (in
thousands) were as follows:

2020 2019
Satisfaction of purpose restrictions—endowment spending $ 41,511 $ 39,320
Satisfaction of purpose restrictions—operating and capital 14,980 20,190
Satisfaction of time restrictions—operating and capital 13,625 13,456
Total $ 70,116 $ 72,966

9. ENDOWMENT FUNDS AND DISCLOSURES UNDER ASC 958-205

Management for the University, with the board of administrator’s concurrence, has
interpreted the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act of 2006

(UPMIFA) as not expressly requiring the preservation of purchasing power (real value) for
donor-restricted endowment funds absent donor stipulations to the contrary.

The University classifies as net assets with restriction the original value of gifts donated for
permanent endowment, any subsequent gifts to such endowments, unrealized gains
(losses) and accumulations subsequently made at the direction of the applicable donor
instrument.
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Endowment funds, net asset composition as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 (in thousands):

Donor restricted endowment funds

Board designated endowment funds

Total endowment funds

Donor restricted endowment funds
Board designated endowment funds

Total endowment funds

2020
Without With
Restriction Restriction Total
$ - $ 1,325,450 $ 1,325,450
133,198 - 133,198
$ 133,198 $ 1,325,450 $ 1,458,648
2019
Without With
Restriction Restriction Total
$ - $ 1,291,501 $ 1,291,501
131,804 - 131,804
$ 131,804 $ 1,291,501 $ 1,423,305

Changes in endowment funds, net assets for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 (in

thousands):

Net assets, beginning of year

Investment return:
Net appreciation
(realized and unrealized)

Total investment return
New gifts
Endowment assets used

for expenditure
Other

Total noninvestment
changes

Net assets, end of year

2020
Without With

Restriction Restriction Total
$131,804 $ 1,291,501 $ 1,423,305
7,039 66,464 73,503
7,039 66,464 73,503
364 24,332 24,696
(6,009) (57,710) (63,719)
- 863 863
(5,645) (32,515) (38,160)
$133,198 $ 1,325,450 $ 1,458,648
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2019

Net assets, beginning of year

Investment return:
Net appreciation
(realized and unrealized)

Total investment return
New gifts
Endowment assets used

for expenditure
Other

Total noninvestment
changes

Net assets, end of year

Composition of Endowed Funds—The University’s endowment fund assets are managed

Without With

Restriction Restriction Total
$128,369 $ 1,255,598 $ 1,383,967
9,294 60,355 69,649
9,294 60,355 69,649
1,641 25,644 27,285
(7,502) (53,522) (61,024)
2 3,426 3,428
(5,859) (24,452) (30,311)
$131,804 $1,291,501 $1,423,305

around asset components with different characteristics. These are pooled endowment
funds, funds managed under the Louisiana Education Quality Support Fund (LEQSF),

separately invested endowment funds, and University-owned real estate.

The approximate asset composition of these funds at June 30, 2020 and 2019 is as

follows:

Pooled funds
LEQSF pooled funds
Separately invested funds

Contributions receivable
Investment income receivables and other

Total endowment related net assets

2020

$ 1,095,422 *
209,779
118,935  **

18,802

15,710

$ 1,458,648

* This category includes $16.6 million in University-owned real estate that returned
approximately $0.2 and $0.5 million in net rents and royalties for the years ended
June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

2019

$1,052,730 *

210,095
119,239  **
22,615

18,626

$1,423,305

** This category includes an investment of approximately $9.2 and $16.4 million in
Murphy QOil Corporation common stock at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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Return Objectives and Risk Parameters—The University has adopted endowment
investment and spending policies relative to its pooled endowment funds that attempt to
provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while
ensuring that purchasing power of the assets do not decline over time. The pooled
endowment assets are invested long term in a manner intended to produce results that
exceed the rate of inflation, plus the payout percentage.

The Board of Regents of Louisiana (BOR) provides investment guidelines for LEQSFs that
are more restrictive in terms of investment choices that are available. Accordingly, these
funds are managed with the expectation of lower volatility and with a bias toward
preservation of capital. Even so, the long-term expectation is that these funds will
generally return inflation, plus 5%.

Separately invested funds are managed to meet donor expectations.

Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives—To satisfy its long-term rate of return
objectives, the University relies on a total return strategy in which investment returns are
achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current yield
(interest and dividends). The University targets a diversified asset allocation that places a
greater emphasis on equity-based investments to achieve its long-term return objectives
within prudent risk constraints.

Spending Policies and Investment Objectives—The University has a policy with
respect to its pooled endowment funds of appropriating for distribution each year
approximately 5% of its pooled endowment fund’s average fair value over the prior
12 quarters through the calendar year-end preceding the fiscal year in which the
distribution is planned.

This policy is consistent with the objective of maintaining the purchasing power of the
endowment assets, as well as to provide additional real growth through investment return.
In the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, the University used approximately $51.3 and
$50.8 million, respectively, in pooled endowment assets for spending.

The BOR provide spending guidelines for those accounts that are matched by state funds
through the LEQSF program. Those guidelines generally provide for preservation of capital
and by averaging the fund values of the previous five years. Generally, values that fall
below the CPI-adjusted balances will forgo a distribution in the subsequent year. In fiscal
2014, the BOR permanently suspended application of the CPI feature of its payout formula,
thus allowing payouts when fund value is higher than original fund corpus. For the years
ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, the University used approximately $9.1 and $8.7 million,
respectively, in such assets for spending.

Separately invested funds generally produce dividends and interest that are then made
available for spending. For the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, such items totaled
approximately $5.6 and $4.6 million, respectively.

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual endowment funds
may fall below the level that the donor or UPMIFA requires the University to maintain as a
fund of perpetual duration. These deficiencies, if any, are monitored by management. No
significant deficiencies exist as of June 30, 2020 or June 30, 2019; such deficiencies are
considered to be temporary.
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Endowment Assets used for Spending—The University made $63.7 and $61.0 million
of endowment assets available for spending in the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.

10. PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant, and equipment consist of the following at June 30, 2020 and 2019 (in

thousands):
2020 2019

Land $ 23,598 $ 23,598
Buildings and improvements 1,313,177 1,248,177
Equipment 249,342 228,750
Library books and materials 239,788 229,398
Construction in progress 30,483 59,923

Property, plant, and equipment, gross 1,856,388 1,789,846
Less accumulated depreciation (858,000) (816,404)
Property, plant, and equipment-net $ 998,388 $ 973,442

The University capitalizes interest related to construction of major facilities. Capitalized
interest is recorded as part of the related asset and is amortized over the asset’s estimated
useful life. Capitalized interest amounted to $0.9 and $1.9 million for the years ended

June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Purchases of property, plant, and equipment included in accounts payable as of June 30,
2020 and 2019 total $4.7 and $11.7 million, respectively.
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11. NOTES PAYABLE AND LINES OF CREDIT

Notes payable at June 30, 2020 and 2019 consist of the following (in thousands):

2020 2019
Amounts drawn under five short term credit lines,
as described below $ 50,000 $ -
One secured note for $1,500 due in monthly
installments of $8 through 2036 with interest fixed at 4 %. 1,058 1,105

Term note dated July 20, 2018. Principal amounts vary

from $0.125 million quarterly in fiscal 2019, to $1.0745

million by fiscal 2030. A final payment of $5.0 million is

due on April 1, 2033. Interest is borne at LIBOR plus 80

basis points (0.97% and 3.24% at June 30, 2020

and 2019, respectively). 27,468 27,968
Term delayed draw note dated July 20, 2018. Proceeds

were made over 8 quarterly draws of $3.125 million.

Principal payments commence on July 1, 2020 with a

quarterly payment of $0.1575 million and conclude with a

quarterly payment of $1.0825 million on April 1, 2033.

Interest is borne at LIBOR plus 80 basis points (0.97%

and 3.24% at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively). 25,000 12,500

Total notes payable $103,526 $41,573

The University had $200 and $150 million in 5 lines of credit with four banks to meet
short-term seasonal cash requirements, if needed, at June 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively. The lines expire as follows: $40 million on April 22, 2021, $40 million on April
23, 2021, $40 million on April 29, 2021, $50 million on December 11, 2020, and

$30 million on April 7, 2021. Principal is payable upon demand. At June 30, 2020 and
2019, there was $50 and $0 million drawn on these lines, respectively. Interest rates
applicable to these lines are based on several defined LIBOR indices.

On July 20, 2018, the University refinanced its term note payable with a balance of
$28.468 million at June 30, 2018 with another bank. The new note reflects an
improvement in the interest rate to LIBOR plus 80 basis points. Principal amounts vary
from $0.125 million quarterly in fiscal 2019, increasing substantially to $1.0745 million by
fiscal 2030. A final payment of $5.0 million is due on April 1, 2033.

Additionally, the University executed a $25 million delayed term note with the same bank
on July 20, 2018 at the same interest rate (LIBOR plus 80 basis points). Proceeds were
drawn over eight quarterly draws of $3.125 million. Principal payments commence on
July 1, 2020 with a quarterly payment of $0.1575 million and conclude with a quarterly
payment of $1.0825 million on April 1, 2033.
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12. BONDS PAYABLE
Bonds payable consist of the following at June 30, 2020 and 2019 (in thousands):
2020 2019

Mortgage Bonds Series 1982 with annual maturities through 2022, fixed
interest rate of 3.00%. $ 235 $ 330

Tax exempt Louisiana Public Facilities Authority Refunding Revenue Bonds
Series 2007A-2 with annual principal payments of $1,220 to $2,970 from
2015 through 2036, bearing interest at 67% of Three Month LIBOR plus
70 basis points. The rates in effect at June 30, 2020 and 2019 were 0.96%
and 2.39%, respectively. 35,245 36,750

The Administrators of the Tulane Educational Fund Series 2007C Taxable
Refunding Revenue Bonds with annual principal payments ranging from
$2,345 to $7,590 from 2016 through 2036, bearing interest at three
month LIBOR plus 30 basis points. The rates in effect at June 30, 2020
and 2019 were 0.69% and 2.82%, respectively. 82,530 85,635

Tax exempt Louisiana Public Facilities Authority Revenue Bonds, Series
Series 2009 (Dormitory) was delivered on December 9, 2009 and
matures December 9, 2041. The face value of the issue is $30,000
with draws made to fund construction. Principal is due in annual
installments ranging from $100 to $5,500 due from 2016 to 2042. These
bonds can be called at any time and may be put by the bondholder in
fiscal 2020 and every 5 years thereafter. The interest rate is fixed at
2.33%. 28,935 29,035

(Continued)
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2020 2019

Tax exempt Louisiana Public Facilities Authority Bonds, Series 2010 (Energy)
were delivered on March 25, 2010 and mature on March 25, 2042. The face
value of the issue is $30,000 with draws made to fund construction.
Principal is scheduled in annual installments beginning in fiscal 2014
at $100 and ending in fiscal 2042 with $3,865. The bonds may be called
at any time and may be put by the bondholder in fiscal 2020 and every
5 years thereafter. The interest rate is fixed at 2.33%. $ 28,550 $ 28,650

Tax exempt Louisiana Public Facilities Authority Revenue Bond Series 2013A
with annual maturities of $2,860 with a bullet payment of $12,705 due
on January 1, 2023. The rate is fixed at 2.25%. 19,140 22,000

Tax exempt Louisiana Public Facilities Authority Revenue Bond Series 2013B
with annual maturities of $11,965 to $14,255 from 2037 through 2041,
fixed interest rates from 4% to 5%. 65,670 65,670

The Administrators of the Tulane Educational Fund Series 2013C Taxable
Refunding Revenue Bonds with annual principal payments ranging from
$1,380 to $6,700 from 2042 to 2048, fixed interest rate of 5.0%. 36,985 36,985

The Administrators of the Tulane Educational Fund Series 2013D Taxable
Refunding Revenue Bonds with annual principal payments ranging from
$4,850 to $6,225 from 2036 to 2037, and from $6,035 to $8,200 from
2042 to 2048, fixed interest rates from 5.25% to 5.434%. 60,575 60,575

Tax exempt Louisiana Public Facilities Authority Revenue and Refunding Bond
Series 2016A with principal payments ranging from $1,305 to $13,760
from 2017 to 2046. Fixed interest rates with an average rate of 4.597%. 162,345 169,110

The Louisiana Public Facilities Authority Taxable Revenue and Refunding
Bonds Series 2016B with principal payments ranging from of $4,170 to
$11,474 from 2017 to 2041. Fixed interest rates with an average
rate of 4.346%. 91,820 91,820

Tax Exempt Louisiana Public Facilities Authority 2017A Revenue and
Refunding Bonds principal payments ranging from $605 to $2,660 from
2018 to 2050. Fixed interest rates with an average rate of 4.282%. 48,325 48,960

The Louisiana Public Facilities Authority 2017B Taxable Revenue Bonds
with principal payments ranging from $2,865 to $4,225 from 2018 to 2027.

Fixed interest rates with an average rate of 2.803%. 29,780 32,835
690,135 708,355

Bond underwriters net premium and discount 27,474 28,536
Deferred financing costs (7,327) (7,670)
Bonds payable $710,282 $729,221

(Concluded)
The 2007 Series A-2 series were used to redeem $61 million in previously issued taxable

bonds. The 2007 Series B proceeds were used to escrow $31.820 million toward
redemption of certain 1997 tax-exempt issues. The 2007 Series C proceeds were applied
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toward escrows established to defease portions of six previous tax-exempt issues and
three previous taxable issues.

The University issued tax-exempt bonds in 2010 through the Louisiana Public Facilities
Authority (LPFA) to support undergraduate campus dormitory construction and medical
school campus infrastructure improvements. The Series 2010 bonds were fully drawn by
December 31, 2010. The Series 2009 bonds have been fully drawn to match construction
requirements that concluded in December 2012. In each case, the bond purchaser is a
large commercial bank.

The University issued tax-exempt bonds in 2013 through the LPFA (2013A and B Series) to
support stadium construction, undergraduate dormitory construction, and medical school
and uptown campus infrastructure improvements. Taxable bonds Series 2013C provided
financing for similar projects.

The University also issued taxable bonds (Series 2013D) to refund $42.27 million of 2007
Series A-1 bonds and $8.43 million of 2007 Series B bonds.

During the year ended June 30, 2017, the University issued tax-exempt and taxable bonds
through the LPFA (2016A and B Series) to refinance outstanding 2007 Series A-1 bonds,
support business school construction, purchase energy conservation equipment and
improvements and other campus improvements. In connection with the issuance of the
2016A and 2016B Series bonds, unamortized debt issuance costs included in the loss on
early extinguishment of debt totaled $2.7 million and reflects a noncash financing activity.

During the year ended June 30, 2018, the University issued tax-exempt and taxable bonds
through the LPFA (2017A and B Series), to refinance outstanding 2007 Series B bonds,
support dining and student commons construction, and various infrastructure projects.

The annual principal maturities for bonds payable at June 30, 2020 are as follows (in
thousands).

Fiscal Year

2021 $ 18,890
2022 19,030
2023 31,230
2024 20,565
2025 and thereafter 600,420
Total $690,135

All of the above described outstanding bonds payable, excluding the mortgage bonds
payable, are general obligations of the University. The University is required to comply with
certain covenants that, if not met, limit the incurrence of additional certain long-term
indebtedness and the sale of certain assets. Management believes the University was in
compliance with its covenants at June 30, 2020 and 2019. The mortgage bonds are
secured by first mortgages on the facilities financed and by investments in government
bonds having a book value and a market value approximating $0.2 million at June 30,
2020 and 2019. In addition, annual net revenues from the residence halls and from
student fees are pledged for debt service to the mortgage bonds.
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13. REVENUE RECOGNITION

As presented in the Statement of Activities, the University has various sources of operating
revenue. The following revenues are presented in accordance with ASU No. 2014-09,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606):

Tuition and Fees—Net—Student tuition and fees are recorded as revenues during the
year the related services are rendered. Advance payments are recorded as deferred
revenue. Financial aid provided by the University is recorded as a reduction to tuition and
fees.

Government Grants and Contracts—Government grants and contracts have been
evaluated and determined to be exchange transactions, meaning revenues are recognized
when allowable expenditures are incurred under such agreements and contracts. Advance
payments are recorded as deferred revenue.

Medical Group Practice, Labs, and Clinics—The University’s medical school faculty
provide professional services to patients, the Tulane University Hospital and Clinic, other
joint venture hospitals, and certain community hospitals. Under these agreements,
professional revenues are distributed in accordance with specified formulas, generally in
the year earned. Other revenues, such as those that relate to labs and clinics are also
recorded in this caption. Expenses directly related to operation of the group practices such
as physician compensation are recorded in the expense caption entitled “"Medical Group
Practice”. Other supporting expenditures such as the operation of certain labs and
treatment centers are recorded in the “Instruction and Academic Support” and “Public
Service” captions.

The University’s Medical Group Practice provides care to patients who meet certain criteria
without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Records of charges foregone
for services and supplies furnished under the charity care policy are maintained to identify
and monitor the level of charity care provided. Because the University does not pursue
collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as
revenue. The University estimates its costs of care by identifying certain accounts in whole,
or in part, as charity care during the year. The charges for services and supplies to those
accounts are considered charity care. The University’s gross charity care charges include
only services provided to patients who are unable to pay and qualify under the University’s
charity care policy. During the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, the estimated costs
incurred by the University to provide care to patients who met certain criteria under its
charity care policy were approximately $5.7 and $4.7 million, respectively.

Auxiliary Enterprises—This category represents revenues mainly related to housing and
dining, also known as room and board. Payments from students for these services are
recorded as revenues during the year the related services are rendered.

Significant Judgments—Significant judgment is required in determining the appropriate
approach to applying the revenue recognition criteria. While Topic 606 is generally applied
to an individual contract with a customer, as a practical expedient, the University applies
this guidance to a portfolio of contracts (or performance obligations) with similar
characteristics. The University reasonably expects that the effects of applying this guidance
to the portfolio would not differ materially from applying the guidance to the individual
contracts (or performance obligations) within the portfolio. For tuition and fees, as well as
room and board, which is included within auxiliary enterprises revenues, the University has
determined that students can be grouped into a single portfolio for each of these three
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14.

15.

performance obligations. Based on the University’s experience, students at different
campuses, or in different programs have similar characteristics concerning the University’s
approach to revenue recognition. Agreements concerning enrollment, student financial
responsibility, housing, and dining plans each contain terms which clarify the performance
obligations and eligibility for refunds or fee adjustments. These agreements are
fundamentally the same regardless of the program of study. For contracts with customers
not pertaining to tuition and fees, room, and board, the University generally applies the
revenue recognition guidance on an individual contract basis.

Significant judgment is also required to assess collectability. See Note 3, Accounts and
Other Receivables, and Note 4, Contributions Receivable, for additional information
concerning these receivables and their collectability, including related allowances for
doubtful accounts. Given the nature of the University’s contracts with customers, there are
no incremental costs of obtaining a contract and no significant financing components.
During the fiscal year, there were no significant changes in the judgements affecting the
determination of the amount and timing of revenue from contracts with customers.

DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The estimated fair value of all significant financial instrument amounts has been
determined by the University using available market information and appropriate valuation
methodologies. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
value of each class of financial instrument.

Accounts and Contributions Receivable—The University considers the carrying
amounts of these financial instruments to approximate fair value.

Loans Receivable—Loans receivable are amounts principally due from students under
federally sponsored programs that are subject to significant restrictions. Accordingly, it is
not practical to determine fair value.

Investments—Investments at fair value were approximately $1.454 and $1.422 billion at
June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Market values are used when available. Other
investments totaling approximately $36.9 and $39.6 million at June 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively, are reported at carrying values because it was not practical to apply fair
valuation techniques and application of such techniques was not expected to result in
materially different values (see Note 6).

Bonds and Notes Payable—The fair value was approximately $809 and $800 million at
June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The fair value was estimated using rates currently
available for debt with similar terms and remaining maturities.

Other—The University considers the carrying amounts of all other financial instruments to
be a reasonable estimate of fair value.

RETIREMENT PLANS

Retirement benefits for substantially all employees are provided through the Teachers
Insurance and Annuity Association, the College Retirement Equities Fund and Fidelity
Investments. Under these defined contribution plans, contributions are applied, as directed
by each participant, to annuities and/or to the purchase of shares or participation units in a
variety of mutual funds. The amount of contributions made by the University is based upon
the employee’s salary. Plan contributions are funded as they accrue. For the years ended
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17.

June 30, 2020 and 2019, employer contributions to the plans were approximately $25.5
and $24.1 million, respectively.

PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE

The University maintains a self-insurance program for professional medical services
rendered by its medical faculty, including residents and interns. The trust fund assets of
$10.6 and $9.9 million and associated liabilities of $10.1 and $9.9 million at June 30, 2020
and 2019, respectively, are included in unrestricted net assets.

During 1976, the State of Louisiana enacted legislation that created a statutory limit of
$500,000 for each medical professional liability claim and established the Louisiana Patient
Compensation Fund (State Insurance Fund) to provide professional liability insurance to
participating health care providers. The constitutionality of the statutory limit has been
upheld by the Louisiana Supreme Court but is subject to its review at any time. The
University participates in the State Insurance Fund, which provides up to $400,000 of
coverage for settlement amounts in excess of $100,000 per claim. The University carries
commercial liability insurance for claims that might exceed amounts funded by the self-
insurance trust fund or the State Insurance Fund.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Amounts received and expended by the University under various federal and state
programs are subject to audit by governmental agencies. Management believes that
adjustments, if any, that might result from such audits would not have a significant impact
upon the financial position of the University.

The University is a party to various litigation and other claims, the outcome of which
cannot be presently determined. Management’s opinion is that the outcome of such
matters would not have a significant effect upon the University’s financial position or
statement of activities.

Operating Leases—Lessee

The University leases certain real property and equipment. These leases are classified as
operating leases and have lease terms ranging up to 20 years. Total lease payments
amounted to approximately $7.5 and $7.0 million, respectively, for the years ended
June 30, 2020 and 2019. Future minimum rental payments on non-cancellable operating
leases with lease terms in excess of one year as of June 30, 2020 are as follows (in
thousands):

Fiscal Year Amount
2021 $ 7,739
2022 10,506
2023 10,331
2024 10,096
2025 and thereafter 57,087
Total $95,759
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Operating Leases—Lessor

The University leases office and other rental space to other businesses. Lease terms range
from one to 99 years, with options of renewal for additional periods. All such property
leases provide for minimum annual rentals and all rental revenue has been recorded on a
straight-line basis. Following is a schedule by years of future minimum rental payments
under operating leases as of June 30, 2020 (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Amount
2021 $ 2,914
2022 1,367
2023 1,136
2024 1,108
2025 and thereafter 86,221
Total $92,746

The 99-year land lease dated March 1995 relates to the hospital/clinic as described in
Note 18.

Interest Rate Collars and Swaps (in thousands)

The University has entered into interest rate swap agreements to fix variable interest rates
when terms have been advantageous. The University is not required to post collateral
under any of its outstanding swaps.

In January 2009, the University entered into a forward-starting swap of interest rates that
became effective February 15, 2011 to hedge certain of the Series 2007C Bonds

("Swap A"). Under Swap A, which had an original notional amount of $103.1 million that
amortizes with the Series 2007C Bonds, the University pays a fixed rate of 3.195% (as
subsequently amended) and the swap provider pays a three-month US Dollar LIBOR rate.
Swap A had an original termination date of February 2017.

In a second swap arrangement that hedges the Series 2007A-2 Bonds, the University pays
a fixed interest rate of 2.334% (as subsequently amended) and receives 67% of three-
month LIBOR on an original notional amount of $62.2 million that amortizes with the
Series 2007A-2 Bonds (“Swap B”). Swap B had an original termination date of February
2017.

Swap A and Swap B were modified in July 2015 to extend their termination dates to
February 15, 2036. In connection with these maturity date extensions, effective May 15,
2015, the fixed rate Swap A (current notional amount of $82,530), was amended to
3.1296%, and the fixed rate on the Swap B (current notional amount of $35,245) was
amended to 2.1018%.

The combined values of the above agreements at June 30, 2020 and 2019 were

approximately $23,512 and $11,163 in favor of the swap providers, as reflected in the line
item accounts payable and accrued liabilities.
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The fair value of the interest rate swap is based on the present value of the fixed and
floating portions of the agreements and, therefore, is considered a Tier 3 input (see

Note 6). A roll forward of the fair value measurements for the University’s financial liability
measured at estimated fair value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable (Tier
3) inputs for years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 is as follows (in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements Using Significant Unobservable Inputs (Tier 3)
Total Realized/Unrealized Gains (Losses) included in:

Purchases,
Balance, Realized Unrealized Sales, Transfer In Balance,
July 1, Gains Gains Issuances and and/orOut June 30,
2019 (Losses) (Losses) Settlements of Level 3 2020
Interest rate swaps $ (11,163) $ - $ (12,349) $ - $ - $(23,512)

Fair Value Measurements Using Significant Unobservable Inputs (Tier 3)
Total Realized/Unrealized Gains (Losses) included in:

Purchases,
Balance, Realized Unrealized Sales, Transfer In Balance,
July 1, Gains Gains Issuances and and/orOut June 30,
2018 (Losses) (Losses) Settlements of Level 3 2019
Interest rate swaps $(2,404) $ - $(8,759) $ - $ - $(11,163)

18. HOSPITAL/CLINIC JOINT VENTURE

Effective March 31, 1995, the University entered into a joint venture agreement with
Hospital Corporation of America (HCA), for the continued operation of the Tulane
University Hospital and Clinic. Under the joint venture agreement, a new entity, UHS, a
Louisiana limited liability corporation, was formed. Through June 30, 2005, the University
retained a 20% interest in UHS. Effective July 1, 2005, the University accepted a dilution in
interest to 17.25% when HCA contributed Lakeside Hospital to the partnership. Under the
terms of the joint venture agreement, the University provides services to UHS under a
shared services agreement, an academic affiliation agreement, and other related
agreements. These services include a variety of overhead services, such as plant
operations and security, as well as a variety of direct and indirect medical educational and
related services. Additionally, the University leases to UHS the land upon which the
hospital and clinic facilities are located, and leases office space to UHS and to HCA in a
university-owned building.

Effective May 7, 2017, the UHS entered into an agreement with Epic Development, Inc., a
subsidiary of HCA, to lease Lakeview Hospital, licensed as a 167-bed facility, in Covington,
Louisiana for 15 years.

For the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, the University recorded revenue and cost
recoveries of approximately $55.9 and $59.2 million, respectively, and as of June 30, 2020
and 2019, recorded approximately $7.1 and $6.1 million, respectively, as receivable from
UHS, related to these agreements.

The University’s share of the joint venture’s equity at June 30, 2020 and 2019 was zero.
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19. COVID-19

The coronavirus pandemic is a continuing event arising out of the global pandemic of
coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19). In March 2020, a national emergency concerning
COVID-19 was declared in the United States. In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the
University suspended in-person classes at Tulane campuses and moved the curriculum
online, evacuated students with the closure of campus residence halls, and requested
University faculty and staff to work remotely where possible.

The University’s COVID-19 emergency response, planning, and decision making process,
which began early in calendar year 2020, is on-going, continues to evolve, and remains
focused on the University’s top priorities of health and safety, education and academic
continuity (teaching, research and learning), and student recruitment and retention.

As the COVID-19 pandemic is complex and rapidly evolving, the University cannot
reasonably estimate the duration and severity of this pandemic, which could have an
adverse impact on the University’s results of operations, financial position and cash flows.
The University is taking prudent financial measures to mitigate the impact of COVID-19 in
order to realize assets and satisfy liabilities in the normal course of business. Some of
these measures include salary and travel freezes and other targeted budget reductions in
order to build significant budget reserves.

In April 2020, the University announced a comprehensive multi-phased plan for the return
to campus of students and faculty for the fall semester. This plan was based on informed
public health guidance and includes procedures for COVID-19 testing and contact tracing,
cleaning/sanitization of workspaces, face coverings and social distancing, among other
things. For example, employees and students underwent COVID-19 testing prior to return
to campus and undergo frequent ongoing testing throughout the semester. Processes
were implemented to temporarily house students that test positive for COVID-19, or are a
close contact, provide them needed support while recovering and also permit them to
continue their academic studies remotely. One method for achieving social distancing
involves converting non classroom space such as auditoriums, meeting rooms and gyms
into classrooms. Additionally, fourteen temporary buildings for dining and classrooms were
erected on campus. The University has incurred significant losses, and will continue to
incur losses, regarding the COVID-19 event.

20. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The University completed its subsequent events reviews through November 5, 2020.

On August 4, 2020, the University issued tax-exempt bonds for new construction as well as
refinancing. The total issue was $187.4 million, with approximately $155 million in new
money dedicated for capital projects, and the remaining for the refinancing of the Series
2009 and Series 2010 bonds.

Xk %k %k X Xk Xk
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Administrators of
Tulane University
New Orleans, Louisiana

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the
consolidated financial statements (the “financial statements”) of Tulane University (the
“University”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2020, and
the related statements of activities, cash flows, and functional expenses for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated November 5, 2020.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the
University’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the University’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the University’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that there
is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is
a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore,
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified.
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify a certain deficiency in
internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as
item 2020-01 that we consider to be a significant deficiency.



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the University’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit,
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the University’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the University’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Deloitte 3 Toucne UP
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR ITS MAJOR FEDERAL
PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM
GUIDANCE

To the Board of Administrators of
Tulane University
New Orleans, Louisiana

Report on Compliance for Its Major Federal Program

We have audited Tulane University’s (the “University”) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on its University’s major federal program for the year ended
June 30, 2020. The University’s major federal program is identified in the summary of
auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the University’s major federal
program based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;
and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the University’s compliance with those requirements and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of
University’s compliance.

Opinion on the Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the University complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
its major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2020.



Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the University is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered University’s
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on its major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for
its major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of University’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness
in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described
in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on
the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any
other purpose.

Other Information

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the University as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2020 and have issued our report thereon dated November 5, 2020,
which contained an unmodified opinion on those consolidated financial statements. Our
audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards and financial
responsibility ratio supplemental schedule on page 20 are presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and Title 34 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 668, Student Assistance General Provisions, and are not a required part of
the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
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statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a
whole.

Deloitte 3 Tonce URP

January 20, 2021



TULANE UNIVERSITY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Contract/
CFDA Flow to Federal
Description (Pass-Through Grant Number) Number Subrecipients Expenditures
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT—Cluster:
Department of Health and Human Services:

DHHS-Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality-Passed through The University of Chicago

(FP071579-01-PR) 93.226 $ - $ 39,258
Center for Disease Control and Prevention 93.135 - 166,618
Passed through Louisiana State University Health Sciences Center (PH-20-111-005) 93.898 - 11,980
Passed through American Thrombosis and Hemostatis Network (ATHN2015002-HTC12-Ext) 93.283 - (1)
Passed through Louisiana State University HSC (PH-19-111-006/1581311003A) 93.800 - (2)
Passed through Vysnova Partners, Inc. (SC-2018-3045-TU) 93.RD 54,703 78,951
Passed through Vysnova Partners, Inc. (3034-001/3045/ SC-2017-3034-TU) 93.RD 2,617 10,476
Center for Disease Control and Prevention 93.RD - 14,256
DHHS-Health Resources and Services Admin-Passed through Emory University

(T867006/UH7MC30772-01-00) 93.110 - 46,265
DHHS-Biomedical Advanced Research and Development Autho-Passed through Regeneron

Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (6R88-COV-2040/2020-516) 93.RD - 29,833
DHHS - Health Resources and Services Admin-Passed through Louisiana Office of Public Health

(2000402172) 93.110 - 6,246
DHHS-Substance Abuse & Mental Health Service Admin-Passed through Georgetown University

(GR413644-TU) 93.243 - 36,816
DHHS - Substance Abuse & Mental Health Service Admin-Passed through The Regents of the University

of California - San (-) 93.243 - 82,020
NIH-National Institute of Biomedical Imaging & Bioenginee 93.RD - (4,032)
NIH-John E. Fogarty International Center 93.989 314,206 781,211
Passed through Lebanese American University (2018-NIH-00001-00003) 93.989 - 17,233
Passed through University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill (5108726) 93.989 - 122,514
Passed through University of Sciences, Techniques and Technologie

(USTTB-TULC/U2RTW-01/1U2RTW0106) 93.989 - 23,863
Passed through University of Sciences, Techniques and Technologie

(USTTB-TULC/U2RTW-03/5U2RTW010673) 93.989 - 89,922
Passed through Vanderbilt University (VUMC75677) 93.989 - 15,744
NIH-National Center for Advancing Translational Sc-Passed through LaCell LLC

(Tulane01-5N95019C00019) 93.RD - 33,044
NIH-National Center on Minority Health and Healt 93.307 - 104,712
Passed through Xavier University of Louisiana (OSP-15-21173-00H) 93.310 - (170)
Passed through Xavier University of Louisiana (19-211317-000) 93.307 - 46,556
Passed through Xavier University of Louisiana (26-211461-000) 93.307 - 3,673
NIH-National Cancer Institute 93.393 20,838 1,129,206
NIH-National Cancer Institute 93.394 101,496 494,401
NIH-National Cancer Institute 93.395 - (4,323)
NIH-National Cancer Institute 93.396 22,071 2,935,438
NIH-National Cancer Institute 93.398 - 29,030
Passed through Leidos Biomedical Research, Inc. (19X032/HHSN261200800001E) 93.RD - 16,188
Passed through Louisiana State University Health Sciences Center (19-91-007/1R21CA223119-01A1) 93.394 - 1,346
Passed through Louisiana State University Health Sciences Center (19-91-007/5R21CA223119-02) 93.394 - 12,542
Passed through NRG Oncology Foundation, Inc. (-) 93.395 - 5,671
Passed through NRG Oncology Foundation, Inc. (NRG-Sartor-GY6) 93.395 - 6,083
Passed through University of Florida (UFDSP00011697) 93.393 66,199 482,035
Passed through University of Maryland (1903427 #2610) 93.393 - 79,400
Passed through Westat, Inc. (10272) 93.RD - (68)
NIH-National Center for Advancing Translational Science 93.310 - 24,213
NIH-National Center for Advancing Translational Science 93.350 242,698 458,376
Passed through AxoSim Technologies, LLC (SUB-12702/ R42-TR001270) 93.350 - 27,293
Passed through University of Alabama at Birmingham (000508606-003) 93.350 - (2,608)
Passed through University of Alabama at Birmingham (000510876-001) 93.350 - 3,799
Passed through University of Alabama at Birmingham (000520679-008) 93.350 - 102,705
Passed through University of Alabama at Birmingham (000524523-001) 93.350 - 68,277
Passed through University of Pittsburgh (0056727 (133615-1)) 93.350 - 168,431
Passed through University of Pittsburgh (AWD0001324 (133694-2)) 93.350 - 66,172
NIH-National Center for Complimentary and Integrative-Passed through Mount Sinai
Medical Center of Florida, Inc. (UH3AT009149) 93.213 - (26,321)
NIH-National Eye Institute 93.867 - 545,477
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Department of Health and Human Services
Passed through Emory University (PO# A2575594)
NIH-National Heart, Lung, Blood Institute
NIH-National Heart, Lung, Blood Institute
NIH-National Heart, Lung, Blood Institute
Passed through BloodCenter of Wisconsin, Inc. (-)
Passed through Brigham and Women's Hospital (5U01HL101422)
Passed through Brigham and Women's Hospital (110620)
Passed through Brigham and Women's Hospital (120938)
Passed through Cincinnati Children's Hospital Medical Center (134433)
Passed through Institute of Nutrition of Central America y Panama (1U01HL138647-01-03)
Passed through Joslin Diabetes Center, Inc. (100027)
Passed through Louisiana State University Health Sciences Center (2R01HL2093178-06A1/00376538)
Passed through Louisiana State University Health Sciences Center (16-21-248)
Passed through Massachusetts General Hospital (A5332/5U01HL123336-02)
Passed through Northwestern University (5R01HL126117-04)
Passed through Northwestern University (5R01HL126117-05)
Passed through Northwestern University (60053373TUL)
Passed through Northwestern University (5R01HL131771-03)
Passed through Temple University (5SR01HL141132-02)
Passed through Temple University (258463-TULANE/5R01HL130233-04)
Passed through The University of Vermont (32773SUB52554/1R01HL142702-01)
Passed through University of Alabama at Birmingham (000503570-040 A01)
Passed through University of Buffalo (R1186472)
Passed through University of Central Florida Board of Trustees (22206105-01/7R01HL141045-02)
Passed through University of Pittsburgh (CNVA00061418 (131763-1))
Passed through University of Virginia (GB10298 152688)
Passed through Washington University in St. Louis (RO1HL118305/WU-17-324)
Passed through Versiti Wisconsin, Inc. (1001023-5)
NIH-National Human Genome Research Institute-Passed through Redeemer's University (-)
NIH-National Institute of Allergy and Infectious Disease
NIH-National Institute of Allergy and Infectious Disease
Passed through Arizona State University ( -)
Passed through Arizona State University (ASUB00000530)
Passed through Benaroya Research Institute at Virginia Mason (FY18ITN146)
Passed through Children's Hospital Boston (GENFD0001330956/HHSN2722014000)
Passed through Colorado State University (G-01233-1/R01AI1123234-02)
Passed through Columbia University-The Aaron Diamond AIDS

Research (1 (GG015865-01)/6R01AI145645)

Passed through Duke University (A032383/A032376/1P01A1129859-0)
Passed through Emory University (A0088713/5U19A1051731-17)
Passed through Emory University (A234852/5U19A1051731-17)
Passed through Enable Biosciences, Inc (LymeP1/1R43A1142936-01)
Passed through fhi360 (-)
Passed through fhi360 (PO# 17002339)
Passed through Health Research Inc., Wadsworth Center (1R01AI12519001/5304-01)
Passed through Institute for Clinical Research, Inc. (M07-LO-007-0704-01)
Passed through Integrated Biotherapeutics, Inc. (Need/2R42A1122666-03)
Passed through La Jolla Institute for Allergy and Immunology (27909-01-112-408)
Passed through La Jolla Institute for Allergy and Immunology (27909-02-112-408)
Passed through Louisiana State University and A&M College (PO-0000093340/5R21A1127160-02)
Passed through Louisiana State University and A&M College (PO-0000093341/5R21A1127222-02)
Passed through Louisiana State University Health Sciences Center (18-17-103-A1)
Passed through Louisiana State University Health Sciences Center (18-17-103-A2)
Passed through Montana State University (G129-18-W6858/1R56A1127398-01A)
Passed through Northwestern University (60047274 TULU/5R37A1094595-07)
Passed through Northwestem University (60040626 TUL/UMI1A1120184-04)
Passed through Northwestem University (60040626 TUL/UMI1A1120184-05)
Passed through Northwestermn University (60047274 TULU/5R37A1094595-08)
Passed through Population Council (SH1801/2R56A1098546-06)
Passed through Quality Biological, Inc. (PO#47424/Task#TOASnhp063/HHSN2)
Passed through Regents of the University of California, Davis (201303042-04/A14-0012S005)

Contract/
CFDA
Number

93.867
93.837
93.838
93.701ARRA
93.839
93.837
93.837
93.837
93.837
93.RD
93.837
93.837
93.837
93.837
93.837
93.837
93.837
93.837
93.837
93.837
93.838
93.837
93.837
93.837
93.838
93.837
93.837
93.837
93.310
93.855
93.RD
93.855
93.855
93.855
93.RD
93.855

93.855
93.855
93.855
93.855
93.855
93.855
93.855
93.855
93.855
93.855
93.855
93.855
93.855
93.855
93.855
93.855
93.855
93.855
93.855
93.855
93.855
93.855
93.RD
93.855

Flow to
Subrecipients

$ -
329,786
135,239

2,742,454
807,104

Federal
Expenditures

$ 14,906
5,038,685
1,627,100

36
7,146
7,408
2,427

91,385
207,414
20,190
(15,603)
(169)
(663)
20,612
5,704
39,694
21,929
42,914
385,435
284,316
186,174
17,270
30,828
36,052
17,974
29,745
6,063
747
89,628
9,377,479
6,035,643
477,717
13,937
(41)
3,410
110,651

42,433
455,312
1,618
36,892
68,036
678
194,357
36,432
15,169
123,434
410,716
25,036
58,411
127,863
2,031
21,538
19,335
36,019
24,295
480,114
308,420
3,489
32,975
2,959
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Contract/
CFDA Flow to Federal
Description (Pass-Through Grant Number) Number Subrecipients Expenditures
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT—Cluster:
Department of Health and Human Services:
Passed through Southwest National Primate Research Center/Texas B
(18-04739-201/P0O 72959/7R01AI11) 93.855 $ - $ 22,717
Passed through The Research Institute at Nationwide Children's Ho (700183-0520-00) 93.855 - 10,449
Passed through The Scripps Research Institute (5-53538/5U19A1109762-05) 93.855 - 4
Passed through The Scripps Research Institute (5-53935) 93.855 - 203,091
Passed through The Scripps Research Institute (5-54178) 93.855 - 61,016
Passed through The Scripps Research Institute (5-54254) 93.855 - 9,164
Passed through The Scripps Research Institute (5-57704) 93.RD - 132,171
Passed through University of Alabama at Birmingham (-) 93.RD - 6,328
Passed through University of Alabama at Birmingham (000500918-T011-003) 93.RD - (4,391)
Passed through University of Alabama at Birmingham (000500918-T013-004) 93.RD - 1,864
Passed through University of Alabama at Birmingham (000524050-T004-004) 93.RD - 5,760
Passed through University of California, San Diego (126409537) 93.855 - 142,508
Passed through University of California, San Diego (126404101) 93.855 - 43,954
Passed through University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill (5107154) 93.855 - 219,223
Passed through University of North Dakota (UND0024649-S1) 93.855 - 10,497
Passed through University of Pennsylvania (1 RO1 AI112456-02/563222) 93.855 - (1)
Passed through University of Pennsylvania (564508/5P30A1045008-20) 93.855 - 79
Passed through University of Pennsylvania (566024/5R01A1118691-05) 93.855 - 11,495
Passed through University of Pennsylvania (573844/5R01A1138782-03) 93.855 - 390,731
Passed through University of Pennsylvania (577440/P.0. #4363541) 93.855 - 72,221
Passed through University of Pennsylvania (577496/2-P30-AI-045008-21) 93.855 - 200,745
Passed through University of Pittsburgh (0050742(129818-1)) 93.855 - (2,198)
Passed through University of Pittsburgh (5P01AI106684-03) 93.855 - 42,702
Passed through University of Pittsburgh (CNVA00043982 (130496-1)) 93.855 - 120,073
Passed through University of Sciences, Techniques and Technologie (USTTB-TULC/3U19A1129387-03S1) 93.989 - 40,745
Passed through University of Sciences, Techniques and Technologie (USTTB-TULC/3U19A1129387-04S1) 93.855 - 8,191
Passed through University of Washington (-) 93.855 - 33,582
Passed through University of Washington (UWSC11549/BP044441) 93.855 - 87,624
Passed through Zalgen Labs, LLC (-) 93.855 - 41,383
NIH-National Institute of Arthritis & Musculoskeletal 93.846 10,621 570,698
Passed through Duguesne University (G1700006) 93.846 - (3,153)
NIH-National Institute of Biomedical Imaging & Bioengineering 93.286 918 146,558
NIH-National Institute of Child Health & Human Development 93.865 1,870,100 7,426,060
Passed through Boston College (5107091-1) 93.865 - 74,331
Passed through Duke University (4DP2HD075699-02/2036378) 93.310 - (1,796)
Passed through Duke University (-) 93.855 - (501)
Passed through Gilead Sciences, Inc. (CO-US-104-0402 PO#11074877) 93.RD (14,713) 8,844
Passed through Harvard University (114205-1436-5096818) 93.865 - 28,874
Passed through Harvard University (-) 93.865 - 475,617
Passed through Johns Hopkins University (2004481691) 93.865 - 20,474
Passed through New York University (F8729-02) 93.865 - 48,442
Passed through University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences (G190121016) 93.855 - 1,939
Passed through University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences (51460/P0G200121143) 93.865 - 1,953
Passed through University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences (51460/U240D024957) 93.865 - 8,791
Passed through University of California, Los Angeles (2000 G UD587) 93.865 - 1,092,506
Passed through University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill (5113406) 93.865 - (2,538)
Passed through University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill (5114028) 93.865 - 13,113
Passed through University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill (5116447) 93.865 - 19,198
Passed through University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill (-) 93.865 - 3,600
Passed through University of Pennsylvania (565174/4138901/5R01HD075869-05) 93.865 - 179
Passed through University of Utah (10046978-02) 93.865 - 20,956
Passed through Yale University (GR100656 (CON-80000828)) 93.865 - 12,069
NIH-National Institute of Diabetes, Digestive & Kidney Disease 93.847 1,430,075 6,340,975
Passed through Children's Hospital (2843-B) 93.847 - 7,239
Passed through Children's Hospital of Philadelphia (330182720) 93.847 - 334
Passed through The Regents of the University of California - San (10786sc) 93.847 - 37,981
Passed through University of Alabama at Birmingham (000524492-004) 93.847 - 28,978
Passed through University of Illinois - Chicago (17481) 93.847 - 29,940
Passed through University of Pittsburgh (AWD00000486 (415288-1)) 93.847 - 25,474
Passed through University of Virginia (GB10483 PO# 2153732) 93.847 - 9,090
Passed through University of Virginia (GB10728/PO#2192306) 93.847 - 51,694
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT —Cluster:
Department of Health and Human Services:

NIH-National Institute of Environmental Health Sciences
Passed through Litron Laboratories, LTD (R44ES028163)
Passed through RTI International (2-312-0216101-65171L)
NIH-National Institute of Neurological Disorders & Stroke
Passed through Boston College (5106091-1/2R01NS040237-18)
Passed through Florida State University (R01967)
Passed through Mayo Clinic Jacksonville (TUL-224063-01/U01NS080168-05)
Passed through Stream Biomedical, Inc. (PCL-1901-P)
Passed through University of Florida (UFDSP00011963/R01NS063897)
Passed through University of Texas Southwestern Medical Center (GMO 191006 PO#0000001611/7R0)
NIH-National Institute on Deafness and Other Communication
Passed through The University of Texas at San Antonio (1000001647)
NIH-National Institute of Dental & Craniofacial Resear
NIH-National Institute of General Medical Sciences
Passed through Arizona State University (17-107/1R01GM122082-01)
Passed through Louisiana State University (100579/P.0. 0000002150)
Passed through Louisiana State University Health Sciences Center ( -)
Passed through Louisiana State University Health Sciences Center (16-01-901)
Passed through Louisiana State University Health Sciences Center (17-01-900/PO 00381502)
Passed through Louisiana State University Health Sciences Center (18-91-008-A2/149740336A)
Passed through Louisiana State University Health Sciences Center (18-91-009-A1/149740336D)
Passed through Louisiana State University Health Sciences Center (18-91-009-A2/149740336D)
Passed through Louisiana State University Health Sciences Center (18-91-010-A1/5P20GM121288-02)
Passed through Louisiana State University Health Sciences Center (18-91-010-A3/5PG20GM1211288-03)
Passed through Louisiana State University Health Sciences Center (18-91-021-A1/149740336J)
Passed through Louisiana State University Health Sciences Center (18-91-021-A3/149740336J)
Passed through Louisiana State University Health Sciences Center (19-01-901)
Passed through Louisiana State University Health Sciences Center (19-01-902/P.0.#00385528)
Passed through Louisiana State University Health Sciences Center (20-01-900)
Passed through Louisiana State University Health Sciences Center (GM104940-17025-TU02)
Passed through Louisiana State University Health Sciences Center (P20GM103514)
Passed through LSU - Pennington Biomedical Research Center (-)
Passed through LSU - Pennington Biomedical Research Center (14-64-902/1U54GM104940)
Passed through LSU - Pennington Biomedical Research Center (GM104940-17025-TU01)
Passed through LSU - Pennington Biomedical Research Center (GM104940-17025-TU02)
Passed through LSU - Pennington Biomedical Research Center (GM104940-50346)
Passed through LSU - Pennington Biomedical Research Center (GM104940-50346-S4)
Passed through LSU - Pennington Biomedical Research Center (GM104940-50346-S5)
Passed through The Regents of the University of California-Irvine (2018-3664)
Passed through United Nations World Food Programme (4800247165)
Passed through XlLerateHealth, LLC (-)
NIH-National Institute of Mental Health
Passed through Children's Hospital Boston (PO#0000688917)
Passed through Children's Hospital Boston (GENFD0001472003)
Passed through George Mason University (5R011MH102144-05/E2032261)
Passed through Jericho Sciences, LLC (2R44MH096663-03A1)
Passed through University of Maryland (82090-20264201)
Passed through University of Pennsylvania (568947/10052478/3837428)
NIH-National Institute on Aging
Passed through Magee-Womens Research Institute and Foundation (6591)
Passed through University of Colorado Health Science Center (FY19.874.004/2P01AG032958-11)

Contract/
CFDA
Number

93.113
93.113
93.113
93.853
93.853
93.853
93.853
93.853
93.853
93.853
93.173
93.173
93.121
93.859
93.859
93.859
93.859
93.859
93.859
93.859
93.859
93.859
93.859
93.859
93.859
93.859
93.859
93.859
93.859
93.859
93.859
93.859
93.859
93.859
93.859
93.859
93.859
93.859
93.859
93.859
93.859
93.242
93.242
93.242
93.242
93.242
93.242
93.242
93.866
93.866
93.866

Subrecipients

$

Flow to

194,014

225,264

298,114

Federal
Expenditures

$ 847,226
21,889
42,043

2,771,808
383,116
49,081
(8,933)
52,416
49,769
180,600
214,023
53,440
1,291,200
6,744,790
80,615
12,935
1,370
(308)
(366)
29,087
1
24,952
(6,066)
249,443
(6,810)
170,939
2,663
25,120
1,959
10,000
(15)
912,084
175
(1,500)
14,621
(27,395)
(6,563)
(3,349)
30,235
13,628
4,745
2,010,980
(250)
(782)
(29,925)
16,297
25,279
(2,859)
4,442,957
14,718
225,560
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT—Cluster:
Department of Health and Human Services:

Passed through University of Colorado Health Science Center (FY19.875.004/5P01AG032598-12)
Passed through University of Florida (UFDSP00012236)
Passed through University of Tennessee (20-1342-TULN)
Passed through University of Tennessee (-)
NIH-National Institute on Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism
Passed through Louisiana State University Health Sciences Center (PO 00387637/2P60AA009803-26)
Passed through Louisiana State University Health Sciences Center (18-22-009)
Passed through Louisiana State University Health Sciences Center (-)
Passed through Louisiana State University Health Sciences Center (-)
Passed through Louisiana State University Health Sciences Center (20-22-107)
NIH-National Institute on Drug Abuse
Passed through Artys Biotech LLC (-)
Passed through Ochsner Clinic Foundation (2018.294)
Passed through Texas Biomedical Research Institute (-)
Passed through University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill (5SR01DA040394-05/5102548)
Passed through University of Wisconsin - Madison (845K191/UG3DA044826)
Passed through University of Wisconsin - Madison (000000276/UG3DA044826)
NIH-Office of the Director
NIH-Office of the Director
NIH-Office of the Director
Passed through LSU - Pennington Biomedical Research Center (OD023864-16181-TU01/3 OT2 OD02)
Passed through LSU - Pennington Biomedical Research Center (OD024959-16800-TU01)
Passed through Northwestern University (60047360 TU/1K010D024882-03)
Passed through Northwestern University (60050630 TU/1K010D026571-01)
Passed through Northwestern University (60050630 TU/5K010D026571-02)
Passed through Rush University Medical Center (-)
Passed through University of Alabama at Birmingham (000519041-SC002)
Passed through Washington University in St. Louis (1R240D019793-03/WU-15-325)

Total Department of Health and Human Services

-10 -

Contract/
CFDA
Number

93.866
93.866
93.866
93.866
93.273
93.273
93.723
93.723
93.273
93.273
93.279
93.279
93.279
93.279
93.279
93.279
93.279
93.310
93.351
93.352
93.310
93.RD
93.310
93.351
93.351
93.310
93.310
93.351

Flow to
Subrecipients

Federal
Expenditures

$ 173,577

93,249
308,339
57,419
30,324
29,915
27,656
111,336
51,837
9,022
343,977
9,085
48,355
145,461
9,639
4,017
57,597
70,789
13,199,160
38,715
(1,937)
102,921
15,466
19,460
160,694
78,867
1,149,047
33,601

8,993,910

90,855,331
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Contract/
CFDA Flow to Federal
Description (Pass-Through Grant Number) Number Subrecipients Expenditures
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT—Cluster:
Department of Energy:
US Department of Energy 81.049 $ - $ 70,167
US Department of Energy 81.086 - (133)
US Department of Energy 81.135 - (2,663)
US Department of Energy 81.RD - 132,381
Passed through Lawrence Livermore National Laboratory (B617450) 81.RD - (396)
Passed through Los Alamos National Laboratory (162787-1/DE-AC52-06NA25396) 81.RD - 154
Passed through Los Alamos National Laboratory (487008/474101) 81.RD - 52,765
Passed through Louisiana Board of Regents (DOE(2014-17)-Tulane) 81.049 - 251,050
Passed through Otherlab, Inc. (0949-1650) 81.135 - (254)
Passed through Sandia National Laboratories (PO 2113994) 81.RD - 165
Passed through Temple University (262850-06) 81.049 - 54,788
Passed through Triad National Security/Los Alamos National Labora (517933) 81.RD - 79,685
Passed through UT-Battelle, LLC / Oak Ridge National Laboratory (4000165623) 81.RD - 135,660
Total Department of Energy - 773,369
National Science Foundation:
National Science Foundation 47.041 - 849,000
National Science Foundation 47.049 (523) 2,060,649
National Science Foundation 47.050 - 508,244
National Science Foundation 47.070 - 466,778
National Science Foundation 47.074 30,109 565,686
National Science Foundation 47.075 - 152,052
National Science Foundation 47.076 - 63,001
National Science Foundation 47.078 155,152 215,257
National Science Foundation 47.079 - 3,936
National Science Foundation 47.083 - 567
Passed through AxoSim Technologies, LLC (IIP-1622852) 47.RD - (126)
Passed through Clemson University (1962-206-2012124/ 1736123) 47.083 - 198,626
Passed through Florida State University (R02014) 47.041 - 57,956
Passed through Georgia Institute of Technology (RK-153-G4) 47.RD - 74,930
Passed through Instapath, Inc. (TU-258/1820258) 47.041 - 7,759
Passed through Levisonics, Inc. (Sub_347901) 47.041 - 33,668
Passed through Louisiana Board of Regents (NSF(2018)-CIMMSeed-14/ OIA-154) 47.083 - 2,129
Passed through Louisiana Board of Regents (NSF(2019)-CIMMSeed-27) 47.083 - 9,604
Passed through The Mind Research Network (6243 SubN1) 47.083 - 295,913
Passed through University of Mississippi (16-08-014) 47.079 - 47,102
Total National Science Foundation 184,738 5,612,731
Department of State—Agency for International Development:
US Agency for Intemational Development-Passed through Mercy Corps (Tulane SCC 33400S002) 98.001 - 138,045
US Agency for International Development-Passed through Population Council (SR1716/ AID-OAA-A-17-00018) 98.001 458,231 1,276,715
US Agency for Intemational Development-Passed through Save the Children Federation, Inc.
(999002410/72DFFP19LA00003) 98.001 203,910 951,645
US Agency for Intemational Development-Passed through University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill
(7200AA19LA00001/AID-0OAA-L-14) 98.001 - 82,191
US Agency for Intemational Development-Passed through Addis Continental Institute of Public Health
(AID-663-A-14-00004/ACIPH-01/14) 98.RD - 257,392
US Agency for Intemational Development-Passed through Johns Hopkins University
(AID-OAA-A-14-00057) 98.RD - 3,223
US Agency for Intemational Development-Passed through Management Sciences for Health, Inc.
(A406-2015-CR-TULANE) 98.RD - 5
US Agency for Intemational Development-Passed through University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill
(AID-OAA-L-14-00004/5-55183) 98.RD 31,260 344,495
US Agency for International Development-Passed through University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill
(7200AA18LA00008/ AID-OAA-L-14-) 98.RD 397,230 1,203,902
Total Department of State—Agency for International Development 1,090,631 4,257,613

(Continued)
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TULANE UNIVERSITY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Description (Pass-Through Grant Number)

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT—Cluster:
US Department of Defense:
Air Force Office of Scientific Research-Passed through Princeton University (SUB0000343)
Air Force Office of Scientific Research-Passed through Princeton University (SUB0000321)
Defense Advanced Research Projects Agency-Passed through Duke University (313-0919)
Defense Advanced Research Projects Agency-Passed through George Mason University
(E2043981/HR00111820005)
US Office of Naval Research
US Office of Naval Research
Passed through National Marrow Donor Registry Program (220755/210839)
Passed through National Marrow Donor Registry Program (PO#831117/#210839)
US Army Medical Research
Passed through Johns Hopkins University (2002478758)
Passed through Xavier University of Louisiana (OSP-12-211218-001/002)
US Army Research Laboratory
Passed through Pennsylvania State University (5052-TU-ARO-0475)
US Air Force
US Department of Defense-Passed through Mapp Biopharmaceutical, Inc.
(SUB-2016-7042-0001/W911QY-16-C)
US Department of Defense-Passed through Pharmalet, Inc. (MCDC-18-04-14-007/W 15QKN-16-9-)
US Department of Defense-Passed through Texas A&M University (23-S162326/HDTRA1-14-C-0113)
US Department of Defense-Passed through The Regents of The University of New Mexico (3RGU4)
US Department of Defense-Passed through University of Pittsburgh (0061688-4)
US Army Corps of Engineers

Total US Department of Defense

Other Federal Agencies:

US Department of Agriculture-Passed through US Civilian Research and Development Foundation
(59-020-6-004)

US Department of Agriculture-Passed through Tufts University (AAG9002-Chaparro/P.0O. #0186990)

US Department of Agriculture-Passed through Indiana University (BL-4024006)

US Department of Agriculture-Passed through Louisiana State University Agricultural Center
(RC103176M/87092)

US Department of Commerce, Nat Oceanic & Atmospher

Passed through Louisiana State University and A&M College (PO-0000107559)

US Department of Commerce, National Institute of Standards and Technology-Passed through University
of Delaware (PC 1.0-39)

US Department of the Interior

US Department of Housing and Urban Development-Passed through University of Louisiana at Lafayette
(340188-01)

US Department of Housing and Urban Development-Passed through City of New Orleans (-)

United States Geological Survey

US Department of Justice

US Department of Treasury-Passed through University of Louisiana at Lafayette
(350046-01/CPRA-2015-COE-JE)

NASA Headquarters

NATIONAL AERONAUTICS & SPACE ADMINISTRATION-Passed through Louisiana State University
and A&M College (-)

Veterans Administration Medical Center

Veterans Administration Medical Center

Passed through Louisiana Veterans Research and Education Corporat (URO-005)

US Environmental Protection Agency-Passed through Lake Pontchartrain Basin Foundation
(FPSA01-MX00D68218)

US Environmental Protection Agency-Passed through Michigan State University (RC107297Tulane)

US Department of Education

US Department of Education

US Department of Education

Social Security Administration-Passed through Boston College (5107171-S2)

Total Other Federal Agencies

Total Research And Development—Cluster
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Contract/
CFDA
Number

12.800
12.800
12.910

12.910
12.300
12.RD
12.300
12.300
12.420
12.420
12.420
12.431
12.431
12.800

12.RD
12.RD
12.RD
12.RD
12.RD
12.RD

10.001
10.253
10.310

10.500
11.459
11.478

11.619
12.910

14.228
14.RD
15.808
16.560

21.015
43.001

43.008
64.054
64.RD
64.RD

66.475

66.511
84.305A
84.305C
84.305H

96.002

Flow to
Subrecipients

92,109

648,732

23,225

Federal
Expenditures

$ 151,446

25,595
29,283

139,254
142,887
454,781

11,742
35,462
1,595,800
12,818
(28,680)
184,953
(1)
1,184,537

59,852
47,886

(2,886)
64,317
3,446
163,937

764,066

4,276,429

15,609
202,401

10,930
1,153,843
12,819

778
23,815
20,671

1,124
240,495
32,106

8,582
211,430

34,538

86,778
109,308
683,252

2,439
76,483

8,000
59,477
217,227
3,701

47,684
6,601
96,754
1,732,122
136,867
26,533

1,395,602

3,866,765

12,428,947

109,642,238

(Continued)



TULANE UNIVERSITY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Description (Pass-Through Grant Number)

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES:
Center for Disease Control and Prevention
Passed through Louisiana Office of Public Health (200255092/061446/509201)
Passed through Louisiana Office of Public Health (LAGOV 2000361190 61953)
Passed through Louisiana Public Health Institute (1033)
Passed through Texas Health Institute (1 NU1IROT000004-01-00)
Passed through University of Texas Health Science Center (0011472B)
DHHS - Administration for Children and Families-Passed through Louisiana Department of Education (720901)
DHHS - Administration for Children and Families-Passed through Louisiana Department of Education (-)
Passed through City of New Orleans (K16-539/3611-01947)
Passed through Louisiana Office of Public Health (061491/2000263359)
Passed through Louisiana Office of Public Health (2000420382/062345)
Passed through The Regents of the University of California-Irvine (2019-3761/U1QHP28724)
Passed through University of Texas Health Science Center (0012728H)
DHHS - Health Resources and Services Admin
DHHS - Health Resources and Services Admin
DHHS - Health Resources and Services Admin
DHHS - Health Resources and Services Admin
DHHS - Health Resources and Services Admin
NIH-National Institute of Biomedical Imaging & Bioengineering
Passed through City of New Orleans (-)

Total Department of Health and Human Services

DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY:

Federal Emergency Management Agency-Passed through Governor's Office of Homeland Security & Emergency
(PW4982)

Federal Emergency Management Agency-Passed through Governor's Office of Homeland Security & Emergency
(6922 (U043))

Federal Emergency Management Agency-Passed through Governor's Office of Homeland Security & Emergency (-)

Federal Emergency Management Agency-Passed through Governor's Office of Homeland Security &
Emergency (10454(U111))

Federal Emergency Management Agency-Passed through Governor's Office of Homeland Security &
Emergency (9724(U042))

Federal Emergency Management Agency-Passed through Governor's Office of Homeland Security &
Emergency (19631(T000))

Federal Emergency Management Agency-Passed through Governor's Office of Homeland Security &
Emergency (3975(U019))

Federal Emergency Management Agency-Passed through Governor's Office of Homeland Security &
Emergency (8155(U039))

Federal Emergency Management Agency-Passed through Governor's Office of Homeland Security &

Emergency (10436(U074))

Total Federal Emergency Management Agency
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Contract/
CFDA
Number

93.262
93.940
93.940
93.391
93.391
93.080
93.575
93.575
93.914
93.994
93.994
93.969
93.110
93.110
93.117
93.249
93.516
93.918
93.286
93.550

97.036

97.036
97.036

97.036
97.036
97.036
97.036

97.036

97.036

Flow to
Subrecipients

288

214,402

Federal
Expenditures

$ 111,284
73,026
2,598
125,420
177,621
24,893
49
1,684,448
16,211
90,353
79,382
29,423
22,737
566,530
(2,900)
(601)
806,334
528,407
15,618
235,756

1,491,591

4,586,589

61,246

(46)
(7,291)

17,810
31,016
132,915
34,550

22,272

12,442

304,914

(Continued)



TULANE UNIVERSITY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Description (Pass-Through Grant Number)

STUDENT FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE—Cluster:
US Department of Education
US Department of Education
Federal Pell Grant Program
Federal Direct Loan Program

Total Student Financial Assistance—Cluster

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT:

US Department of Housing and Urban Development-Passed through UNITY for the Homeless, Inc.
(LA0251-1702)

US Department of Housing and Urban Development-Passed through UNITY for the Homeless, Inc.
(LA0251L6H031803)

US Department of Housing and Urban Development-Passed through UNITY for the Homeless, Inc.
(LA0273L6H031701)

US Department of Housing and Urban Development-Passed through UNITY for the Homeless, Inc.
(LA0273L6H031802)

Total Department of Housing and Urban Development

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION:
US Department of Education
US Department of Education
US Department of Education
US Department of Education

Total Department of Education

OTHER:
US Department of Agriculture-Passed through Louisiana Department of Children and Families Services (-)
US Department of Commerce, Nat Oceanic & Atmospher-Passed through University of Arizona (470491)
US Department of Justice
Passed through City of New Orleans (-)
Passed through Louisiana Commission on Law Enforcement and Administration (4211)
Passed through Louisiana Commission on Law Enforcement and Administration (4865)
US Department of Labor-Passed through Carville Job Corps Center / Dynamic Educational System (-)
US Department of Labor-Passed through Odle Management Group (-)
Institute of Museum and Library Services
National Endowment for the Arts
National Endowment for the Arts
National Endowment for the Humanities
National Endowment for the Humanities
National Science Foundation
National Science Foundation
National Science Foundation
Passed through Colorado School of Mines (401574-5804/PO# PO191116)
Passed through Louisiana Board of Regents (NSF(2015-20)-LAMP-SA-10)
Passed through Louisiana Board of Regents (LEQSF-EPS(2018)-SURE-201)
Corporation for National Service
US Agency for International Development
Passed through Makerere University (RFA-OAA-12-00004)

Total Other

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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Contract/
CFDA
Number

84.007
84.033
84.063
84.268

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

84.015B
84.022A
84.047A
84.425E

10.561
11.431
16.524
16.UNKNOWN
16.575
16.575
17.UNKNOWN
17.UNKNOWN
45.301
45.024
45.024
45.163
45.164
47.074
47.076
47.079
47.050
47.076
47.083
94.013
98.UNKNOWN
98.UNKNOWN

Flow to
Subrecipients

Federal
Expenditures

$ 810,376
2,071,251
4,215,651

126,723,703

133,820,981

98,790
114,190
4,544

109,386

326,910

323,200
44,597
460,102
2,482,543

3,310,442

186,982
44,277
187,372
127,133

(6,224)
95,777
3,785
23,097
6,850
18,403
24,006
107,120
167,297
11,857
154,469
14,597
5,374
33,166

(112)
426,797
740,021
828

165,270

2,372,872

$ 14,085,808

$ 254,364,946

(Concluded)



TULANE UNIVERSITY

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes
the federal grant activity of Tulane University (the “University”) and is presented on the
accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance
with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(“Uniform Guidance”). Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ
from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the consolidated financial
statements. Federal direct programs are presented by federal department and by individual
federal award. Federal pass-through programs are presented by the entity through which
the University received the federal financial assistance. Full CFDA and pass-through
numbers are included in the Schedule when available.

The University participates in numerous state and federal grant programs, which are
governed by various rules and regulations of the grantor agencies. Costs charged to the
respective grant programs are subject to audit and adjustments by the grantor agencies;
therefore, to the extent that the University has not complied with rules and regulations
governing the grants, refund of any money received may be required and the collectability
of any related receivable as of June 30, 2020, may be impaired.

2. DE MINIMIS COST RATE

The University has not elected to use the 10% de minimis cost rate as covered
in §200.414(f) Indirect (F&A) costs of the Uniform Guidance.

3. FEDERAL LOAN PROGRAM

The federal student loan program listed below is administered directly by the University
and balances and transactions relating to this program is included in the University’s
consolidated financial statements. The balance of the loans outstanding as of June 30,
2020 consists of:

Loans Issued

During Outstanding
CFDA Fiscal Year Balance at
Number 2020 June 30, 2020
Department of Education—Federal
Perkins Loan Program 84.038 $ - $27,385,336

4. FEDERAL DIRECT LOAN PROGRAM

During the year ended June 30, 2020, the University processed no new loans under the
Federal Direct Student Loans. Under Federal Direct Student Loans, loans are provided to
eligible borrowers and parents directly by the federal government through a private
education lending organization.
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NEGATIVE EXPENSES

The negative amounts shown in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards resulted
from adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as

expenditures in prior fiscal years.

X %k %k Xk Xk Xk
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TULANE UNIVERSITY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Part I—Summary of the Auditors’ Results
Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

e Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
None
¢ Significant deficiency(ies) identified? X Yes Reported

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? Yes X No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

e Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
None
¢ Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes X Reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with §200.516

of the Uniform Guidance Yes X No
Identification of Major Programs CFDA Number
Student Financial Aid Various

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: $ 3,000,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes No
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Part II—Financial Statement Findings Section
2020-01 ACCESS SECURITY: Inappropriate Privileged Access (Oracle EBS Application)

During our procedures, Deloitte noted several deficiencies related to access security affecting the Oracle
EBS application. The two individual access security controls that were not operating effectively over the
Oracle EBS application are outlined below.

There are certain business process level controls in place based on our procedures performed. These
include but are not limited to journal entry reviews, bank reconciliations, balance sheet reconciliations,
and financial statement reviews; however, these controls are not direct and precise controls to reduce the
risk to level below that of a significant deficiency. The deficiency herein demonstrates that access is being
granted beyond what is truly necessary and that the least-privileged access provisioning method is not
enforced. As a result, there is a heightened risk of unauthorized or inappropriate activity.

Inappropriate Utilities Diagnostic Access—

Background and Risk: 7 active users (3 developers and 4 business support users within human resources)
had inappropriate access to the Utilities Diagnostic functionality within Oracle EBS. This access was
granted some time prior to June 30, 2020 in order for such users to troubleshoot issues in the production
environment. However, such access also allows direct changes to the production environment potentially
bypassing change management controls.

Users assigned with Utilities Diagnostic function have access to directly maintain data in the database.
Identified users can modify field values in the database through the application layer, e.g. user could
modify ‘period’ field or amount on a journal entry. Note users can only modify fields in forms they
normally maintain access to via assigned responsibilities. In addition, users have access to create or
update personalization on forms, which allow a user to bypass business rules (e.g., approval or triggers
update to data) configured in the system.

Management’s Response: Management agrees with the finding. The three developers stated above are
Information Technology staff within the production application support team that play the role of
production support administrators using the Utilities Diagnostic functionality within the production instance
of Oracle EBS. The four business users are Human Resources Information System professionals that
troubleshoot production problems using the Utilities Diagnostic functionality within the production instance
of Oracle EBS. These are all valid users of this function when using proper procedures.

To that end, Tulane Information Technology does not have the practice of updating any data directly in
production without proper planning and change management practices. Any updates to production data
will be implemented via a production release through Information Technology change management
processes in a controlled manner during a previously approved change management window. Although
there were no identified instances of the University updating production by using the Utilities Diagnostic
function without using these proper procedures, the Utilities Diagnostics menu was removed from all users
identified as having access.

All future access to the production Diagnostic Utilities will require management approval and change
management approval prior to the diagnostic activity within a previously defined window for the activity
based upon a least privilege approach. Even with approval, the diagnostics can include troubleshooting
activities only with no updates to the production environment. Any updates to production data will be
implemented via a production release through IT change management processes in a controlled manner
during a separate approved change management window. Upon the end of the first defined window, all
access to the Diagnostic Utilities will be revoked.

-18 -



All approved accesses will be reported as a production incident documented with approval for change
control and removal immediately upon resolution of the incident. In addition, quarterly reviews will be
performed of all user access, to include identifying users having access to the Utilities Diagnostics menu.
Actions performed as part of the review will be documented and retained as evidence of the review.

Inappropriate AZN Menu Access—

Background and Risk: Our testing procedures indicated that 1 developer maintains inappropriate access to
make changes in the Oracle EBS application. Additionally, we noted 9 business users maintain
inappropriate access to make changes via AZN menus in the Oracle EBS applications. This access was
granted prior to June 30, 2020 as part of a patch to the Oracle EBS system and was not removed
afterwards as there is no process in place to review access after a patch or upgrade. This access was
inappropriately retained during the audit period.

Identified users could make changes directly in application and circumvent change management process.
AZN menus provide users with a graphical depiction of a process flow and the ability access the functions
directly from the graphical navigation, even when they do not have that access via their assigned roles.
Users with AZN menu access could modify business workflows in the application potentially creating a
segregation of duties issue.

Management’s Response: Management agrees with the finding. AZN menus were introduced by Oracle
release 11.5.3 around 2001 to help provide for a more rapid implementation. This resulted in the
inappropriate AZN menu access mentioned above, which is often referred to as upgrade risk. Upgrade risk
refers to the risk that new functions and submenus are added to users’ access when patches are applied.

As an outcome of this finding, the AZN menu was removed from all users identified as having access.
Future system upgrades will include review and verification of user roles to ensure that any future releases
do not inadvertently reassign the AZN menu and/or add any other new access or functionality to any user
or groups. In addition, quarterly reviews will be performed of all user access. Actions performed as part of
the review will be documented and retained as evidence of the review.

Part III—Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs Section
No matters are reportable.
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TULANE UNIVERSITY

FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY RATIO SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Financial Statement &
Financial Statement Line

Financial
Statement Line

Amount Used

Item or Footnote Disclosure Item Amount for Ratio
PRIMARY RESERVE RATIO
Expendable Net Assets, without donor restrictions
Statement of Financial Position |Net Assets without donor restrictions $ 287,683
Statement of Financial Position |Net Assets with donor restrictions 1,507,011
Statement of Financial Position [Bonds Payable 710,282
Statement of Financial Position [Notes Payable 53,526
Statement of Financial Position |Property, Plant, Equipment, net (998,388)
Net Assets with donor restrictions, held in
Note 8 to financial statements |perpetuity (701,799)
Note 12 to financial statements |Current Bonds Payable (18,890)
Net Assets with donor restrictions, specific
Note 8 to financial statements |purpose $ (770,817)
Note 8 to financial statements |Net Assets with donor restrictions, time (34,395)
Net Assets with donor restrictions, held in
Note 8 to financial statements |perpetuity (701,799)
Note 9 to financial statements |Net Assets with donor restrictions, endowment 1,325,450
Net Assets with donor restrictions,
annuities/term endowment (181,561)
Total Expendable Net Assets| | 657,864
Total Expenses and Losses, without Donor
Statement of Activities Restriction 1,070,296
EQUITY RATIO
Modified Net Assets
Statement of Financial Position |Net Assets without donor restrictions 287,683
Statement of Financial Position [Net Assets with donor restrictions 1,507,011
Total Modified Net Assets 1,794,694
Statement of Financial Position [Modified Assets 2,839,325
NET INCOME RATIO
Change in net assets from operating activities,
Statement of Activities without Donor restrictions 26,941
Total Revenues and Gains, without Donor
Statement of Activities Restrictions 1,097,237
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= Deloitte & Touche LLP
e o I e 701 Poydras Street, Suite 4200
New Orleans, LA 70139-7704
USA

Tel: +1 504 581 2727
www.deloitte.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Administrators of Tulane University
Tulane University
New Orleans, Louisiana

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements (the "financial statements") of
Tulane University (the "University"), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position
as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the related consolidated statements of activities, cash flows, and
functional expenses for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Tulane University as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the changes in its net assets,
cash flows, and functional expenses for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.



Other Matters

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements of the
University, as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis
and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the financial statements.

The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to
the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated

November 5, 2020 on our consideration of the University’s internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Tulane University’s internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering Tulane University’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Deloitte 3 Touchhe UP

January 20, 2021
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